
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

STRATEGIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

COMMITTEE 
________________________________________________ 

 

Thursday, 19 January 2012 at 7.30 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London, E14 2BG 
 

Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 

Chair: Councillor Helal Abbas  
Vice-Chair: Councillor Bill Turner   
  
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Dr. Emma Jones 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs 
Councillor Judith Gardiner 
1 Vacancy 
 

Councillor Tim Archer, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Dr. Emma 
Jones) 
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Dr. Emma 
Jones) 
Councillor Gloria Thienel, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Dr. Emma 
Jones) 
Councillor Denise Jones, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Helal 
Abbas, Khales Uddin Ahmed, Bill Turner, 
Carlo Gibbs and Councillor Judith 
Gardiner) 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Helal 
Abbas, Khales Uddin Ahmed, Bill Turner, 
Carlo Gibbs and Judith Gardiner) 
Councillor Amy Whitelock, (Designated 



 
 
 
 

Deputy representing Councillors Helal 
Abbas, Khales Uddin Ahmed, Bill Turner, 
Carlo Gibbs and Judith Gardiner) 
 

[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 

 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: Zoe Folley, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4877, E-mail: zoe.folley@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE  
 

Thursday, 19 January 2012 
 

7.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the extraordinary meeting of the 
Strategic Development Committee held on 28th November 
2011 and the ordinary meeting held on 8th December 2011. 
 
 

3 - 18  

4. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

  

 To RESOLVE that: 
 

1) in the event of changes being made to 
recommendations by the Committee, the task of 
formalising the wording of those changes is 
delegated to the Corporate Director 
Development and Renewal along the broad lines 
indicated at the meeting; and 

 
2) in the event of any changes being needed to the 

wording of the Committee’s decision (such as to 
delete, vary or add 
conditions/informatives/planning obligations or 
reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the 
decision being issued, the Corporate Director 
Development and Renewal is delegated 
authority to do so, provided always that the 
Corporate Director does not exceed the 
substantive nature of the Committee’s decision. 

 
 

  



 
 
 
 

5. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS  
 

  

 To NOTE the procedure for hearing objections at meetings 
of the Strategic Development Committee. 
 
The deadline for registering to speak at this meeting is 
4pm Tuesday 17th January 2012. 
 
 

19 - 20  

6. DEFERRED ITEMS  
 

  

 Nil Items.  
 

21 - 22  

7. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION  
 

23 - 24  

7 .1 45 Millhabour, London (PA/11/00798)   
 

25 - 58 Millwall 

 
 



1 

 
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 

 
  

iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 
interest.   

 
iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 

give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON MONDAY, 28 NOVEMBER 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Helal Abbas (Chair) 
 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Peter Golds 
Councillor Carlo Gibbs 
 
  
 
Other Councillors Present: 
  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Shahid Ali   
 
Officers Present: 
 
Pete Smith – (Development Control Manager, Development 

and Renewal) 
Megan Nugent – (Legal Services Team Leader, Planning, Chief 

Executive's) 
Simon Ryan – (Deputy Team Leader, Development and 

Renewal) 
Matthew Lawes – (Senior Engineer - Development) 
Zoe Folley – (Committee Officer, Democratic Services Chief 

Executive's) 
 

 –  
 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Bill Turner and 
Judith Gardiner. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members declared interests in items on the agenda for the meeting as set out 
below:- 
 

Councillor Item(s) Type of interest Reason 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

 

Peter Golds  6.1 
 
 
 

Personal 
 
 

He had received 
communications 
about the 
application from 
interested parties.  
 
He expressed 
concern at the  
factual accuracy of 
some of the 
representations  
 

Khales Uddin Ahmed  6.1 Personal  
 
 

Had received 
representations 
from interested 
parties.  
 

Carlo Gibbs 6.1 Personal Had received 
representations 
from interested 
parties for and 
against the 
application. 
 

Helal Abbas  6.1 Personal Had received 
representations 
from interested 
parties.  
 
Had also received a 
telephone call from 
an interested party  
but had informed 
them they that he 
could not discuss 
the application. 
 

 
3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  

 
The Committee RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27th 
October 2011 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

4. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The Committee RESOLVED that: 
 

Page 4



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

1) In the event of changes being made to recommendations by the 
Committee, the task of formalising the wording of those changes is 
delegated to the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal along 
the broad lines indicated at the meeting; and  

 
2) In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the 

Committee’s decision (such as to delete, vary or add 
conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for 
approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Corporate 
Director, Development and Renewal is delegated authority to do so, 
provided always that the Corporate Director does not exceed the 
substantive nature of the Committee’s decision 

 
5. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS  

 
The Committee noted the procedure for hearing objections. 
 
 

6. DEFERRED ITEMS  
 

7. TOWER HOUSE, 38-40 TRINITY SQUARE, LONDON EC3N 4DJ  
 
Update report tabled. 
 
At this point, the Chair read out the following statement regarding the above 
item:  
 
I wish to clarify the position with regards to the report being considered tonight 
as a deferred matter.  Agenda Item 6.1 was debated at the previous 
Committee on 27 October 2011 as a deferred item.  Members voted not to 
accept the officer's recommendation to approve permission and concerns 
were raised about the scheme.  However no motion was made to refuse the 
application in accordance with the rules of the Committee.  As such, the 
application was not formally refused by the Committee, and has been 
treated again as a deferred item.  Members should consider the report before 
them tonight and decide whether they accept the officer's recommendation.  
If the committee resolves not to accept such recommendation, then a further 
motion should be moved accordingly. 
 
Pete Smith (Development Control Manager, Planning Services) introduced 
the circulated reported and the Tabled update report concerning application 
(PA/11/00163) - Tower House, 38-40 Trinity Square, London EC3N 4DJ.  
 
Mr Simon Ryan (Deputy Team Leader Planning Services) gave an overview 
of the scheme, explaining the site location, the planning history including the 
previously approved office scheme. Mr Ryan also explained the nature of the 
proposals showing views from key points and the step free access works.  
 
Mr Ryan drew attention to the circulated report detailing matter arising since 
the deferral. Since that time, the Trinity Square Group had requested a 

Page 5



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

screening direction on the proposals. However Officers did not consider that 
the proposal met the criteria for this in legislation. The Historic Royal Palaces 
had also provided additional comments which broadly supported and 
welcomed the development.  
 
Officers also drew attention to Paragraph 2.2 of the report detailing why the 
Committee were minded to refuse the application on 27th October 2011. 
Taking in to account these reasons, Officers had since interpreted their views 
and had suggested possible reasons for refusal (Paragraph 9) and the 
implications of a refusal.  
 
Mr Ryan also drew attention to the update report including additional 
representations in support and objection. The update also set out revisions to 
the Section 106 package which Mr Ryan read out to the Committee. The 
purpose of which was to clarify the Applicant’s offer with regards to the 
Employment and Enterprise contribution.  
 
In response, the Chair referred to the recent site visit to the application site. 
He commented that many Members had viewed and were familiar with the 
site. He also noted the level of lobbying and the previously approved scheme. 
However it was necessary that the Committee consider this application on its 
own merits in accordance with the planning matters.  
 
Members then raised a number of comments and questions. Questions were 
raised about the step free plans for Tower Hill Station. It was questioned 
whether this was an essential requirement of any development of that site.  
 
Some concern was also expressed at the impact on the area. A Member 
remarked that this was a major heritage site, surrounded by historic 
landmarks such as the Memorial gardens, Trinity Square Gardens and the 
Tower of London. The scheme given its glass structure would be out of 
keeping with this area and could potentially spoil its character. It could also 
adversely affect its status as a world heritage site. The Councillor requested 
that the developer reconsider the scheme and come back with a scheme that 
enhanced the area.  
 
A Member also expressed concern at the on street servicing arrangements.  
The servicing and deliveries would take place off the front of Tower Hill 
Station and Coopers Row.  The Member referred to other schemes where this 
was a real problem.  
 
Questions were also raised about: the benefits to Borough residents of the 
step free works; the percentage of Borough residents that used Tower Hill 
station compared to elsewhere and whether the previously approved Office 
scheme also included step free works at the station.  
 
A Member also queried the benefits to specific wards in relation to the s106 
package.  
 

Page 6



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

In reply to these questions, Officers stressed that the proposal should be 
considered on its own merits and it was felt the scheme required the level of 
s106 contributions proposed. They highlighted the need for step free access 
as part of a hotel use at the site. Officers could not comment on any future 
proposals. Customer numbers for Tower Hill station were read out but they 
were no statistics for numbers of customers from the Borough.  
 
Regarding the approved scheme, it did not include any obligations for step 
free works. Officers explained the impact of such proposals in terms of 
accessibility as described in the update.  There was a lack of step free 
stations on the tube line in this area.  The plans would address this gap 
providing an accessible interchange with the surrounding stations. Residents 
would naturally benefit from this greater accessibility along with customers 
from elsewhere.  
 
In terms of the s106 package, the initiatives were Borough wide, rather than 
targeted at specific wards. The role of Planning was to consider the 
implications and seek mitigation where necessary for the overall impact. This 
included the impact on Borough residents as well as visitors to the area and 
customers of the station.  
 
On a vote of 2 for and 2 against, with the Chair casting a second vote in 
favour, the Committee RESOLVED: 
 
1. That planning permission be GRANTED at Tower House, 38-40 Trinity 

Square, London EC3N 4DJ for the erection of a 9-storey building with 
basement, comprising a 370-room hotel (Use Class C1) with 
associated ancillary hotel facilities including cafe (Use Class A3), bar 
(Use Class A4) and meeting rooms (Use Class B1) with plant and 
storage at basement and roof level. The application also proposes the 
formation of a pedestrian walkway alongside the section of Roman 
Wall to the east of the site; the creation of a lift overrun to facilitate a lift 
shaft from ticket hall level to platform level within the adjacent London 
Underground station and associated step free access works; works of 
hard and soft landscaping; and other works incidental to the application  

 
2. That such planning permission be subject to:  
 

A. The prior completion of the previously proposed s106 package to 
secure the following: (as detailed in the update report tabled) 

 
Financial Contributions 

 
a) Highways & Transportation: £103,000, comprising: 

o £3,000 towards monitoring the Travel Plan 

o £50,000 towards the Legible London wayfinding scheme 

o £50,000 towards the Cycle Hire Scheme  
 

Page 7



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

b) Employment & Enterprise: Up to £108,450 (see contributions h & i 
below) towards the training and development of unemployed residents 
in Tower Hamlets to access either:   
o Jobs within the hotel developmental end-use phase; or 
o Jobs or training within Hospitality, Leisure, Travel & Tourism 

employment sectors in the final development 
 

c) Leisure & Tourism promotion: £54,500; comprising: 
o £26,500 towards developing a destination map of the Borough for 

visitors 

o £28,000 towards business tourism promotion and implementing a 
programme with Visit London to promote Tower Hamlets as a 
business tourism destination in the UK, European and International 
Meeting, Incentive, Conference and Exhibition Market 

 
Non-Financial Contributions 

 
d) Delivery of public realm improvements and step-free access works; 
e) No coach parking or drop-offs / pick-ups from Trinity Square or 

Coopers Row; 
f) Code of Construction Practice - To mitigate against environmental 

impacts of construction; 
g) Reasonable endeavours for 20% goods/services to be procured during 

the construction phase should be achieved by businesses in Tower 
Hamlets; 

h) Reasonable endeavours for 20% of the construction phase workforce 
will be local residents of Tower Hamlets or a financial contribution of 
£30,533 to support and/or provide for training and skills needs of local 
residents in accessing new job opportunities in the construction phase 
of new development; 

i) 59 people residing in Tower Hamlets are given HLTT (Hospitality, 
Leisure, Travel & Tourism) sector related training or a financial 
contribution of £35,400 for the delivery of this training; 

j) Access to Employment - To promote employment of local people 
during and post construction, including an employment and training 
strategy; 

k) Any other planning obligation(s) considered necessary by the 
Corporate Director Development & Renewal 

 
Total financial contribution: up to £265,950 
 

B. That the additional contributions and obligations as detailed in 
paragraphs 5.6 to 5.8 of the deferred report be accepted, to be secured 
as part of the s106 Agreement, noting Officer’s views detailed in 
paragraph 5.8 of the deferred report.  

 
3. That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated 
power to negotiate the legal agreement indicated above. 
 

Page 8



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
28/11/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

4. That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated 
power to impose conditions and informatives on the planning 
permission to secure the matters set out in the circulated report: 

 
5. That, if by 28th February 2012, the legal agreement has not been 

completed; the Corporate Director of Development & Renewal is 
delegated power to refuse planning permission. 

 
8. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION  

 
Nil Items.  

 
 

The meeting ended at 7.45 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Helal Abbas 
Strategic Development Committee 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.30 P.M. ON THURSDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2011 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
 
Councillor Khales Uddin Ahmed 
Councillor Bill Turner (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Judith Gardiner 
 
Councillor Gloria Thienel 
Councillor Denise Jones 
Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman 
 
Other Councillors Present: 
 Councillor Shahed Ali 
 
 
Officers Present: 
 
Megan Nugent – (Legal Services Team Leader, Planning, Chief 

Executive's) 
Jerry Bell – (Strategic Applications Manager Development 

and Renewal) 
Jen Pepper – (Affordable Housing Programme Manager, 

Development and Renewal) 
Pete Smith – Development Control Manager, Development and 

Renewal 
Raj Kerai – (Project Development Officer) 
Matthew Lawes – (Senior Engineer - Development) 
Amy Thompson – (Strategic Applications Planner) 

 
Alan Ingram – (Democratic Services) 

 
COUNCILLOR BILL TURNER (VICE-CHAIR) IN THE CHAIR 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the Chair, Councillor Helal 
Abbas, for whom Councillor Denise Jones deputised; Councillor Dr Emma 
Jones, for whom Councillor Gloria Thienel deputised and Councillor Carlo 
Gibbs, for whom Councillor Motin Uz-Zaman deputised. 

Page 11



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

2 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members declared interests in items on the agenda for the meeting as set out 
below:- 
 

Councillor 
 

Item(s) Type of interest Reason 

Judith Gardiner  6.1 & 7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 

Personal 
 
 
 
 
 
Personal 

She had received 
extensive lobbying 
about the 
applications but had 
not taken this into 
consideration. 
Is a Ward Member 
for this application. 
 

Denise Jones  6.1 & 7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1 

Personal 
 
 
 
 
 
Personal 

She had received 
extensive lobbying 
about the 
applications but had 
not taken this into 
consideration. 
Is a Ward Member 
for this application. 
 

Khales Uddin Ahmed  6.1 Personal  
 
 

Had received many 
representations from 
interested parties 
regarding the 
application. 
 

Bill Turner 6.1 Personal Had received many 
representations from 
interested parties 
regarding the 
application. 
 

Motin Uz-Zaman 6.1 Personal Had received many 
representations from 
interested parties 
regarding the 
application. 
 

Gloria Thienel 6.1 Personal Had received many 
representations from 
interested parties 
regarding the 
application. 
 

Page 12



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

3 

 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
The Committee RESOLVED that: 
 

1) In the event of changes being made to recommendations by the 
Committee, the task of formalising the wording of those changes is 
delegated to the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal along 
the broad lines indicated at the meeting; and  

 
2) In the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the 

Committee’s decision (such as to delete, vary or add 
conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for 
approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Corporate 
Director, Development and Renewal is delegated authority to do so, 
provided always that the Corporate Director does not exceed the 
substantive nature of the Committee’s decision 

 
4. PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS  

 
The Committee noted the procedure for hearing objections, together with 
details of persons who had registered for speaking rights at the meeting. 
 

5. DEFERRED ITEMS  
 
Nil items 
 
 

6. PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION  
 

7. LAND AT ROYAL MINT ST MANSELL ST AND CHAMBER ST, ROYAL 
MINT STREET, LONDON (PA/11/00642)  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Pete Smith, Development Control Manager, 
introduced the application (PA/11/00642) regarding redevelopment of the site 
at Royal Mint Street, Mansell Street and Chamber Street, Royal Mint Street, 
London. 
 
The Chair then invited registered speakers to address the Committee. 
 
Mr Liam Griffin, speaking on behalf of Mr Frank Banner, who had registered to 
speak in objection to the application, commented that Mr Banner owned a car 
park on Royal Mint Street that was a useful facility for local businesses.  He 
had worked hard to provide the car park and felt that he should be permitted 
to remain there.  He felt that the proposed development was unnecessary. 
 
Councillor Shahed Ali, speaking in objection to the application, stated that he 
had only that day received a letter advising objectors of the meeting.  As a 
local Councillor he acknowledged the need for community facilities but the 
Council’s primary priority had to be the provision of housing.  He queried the 

Page 13



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

4 

number of social housing units that the scheme would provide and expressed 
the view that the S106 agreement appeared to be very weak, in terms of 
monitoring the occupancy rates throughout the scheme.  He cited the City 
Pride and Island Point schemes as instances where the Council and 
developers had worked well together but felt that it was premature to assume 
that the donor sites linked to the current proposal would receive planning 
permission.  He further felt that Chamber Street was an unsuitable location for 
a large hotel and its servicing arrangements would create chaos, especially 
during rush hours.  In addition, there was inadequate provision for coaches 
and the loss of six pay and display parking spaces was unacceptable.   
 
Councillor Ali then responded to questions from Members relating to housing 
aspects of the application. 
 
Ms Joyce Archbold, Development Manager for Society Links, based in John 
Fisher Street, spoke in support of the application, stating that she worked 
mainly with residents of Royal Mint Estate.  This was an area of real need, 
with some 500 children of 5-16 years, 69% of whom were in receipt of free 
school meals.  Many homes were overcrowded and children needed any 
opportunity to be able move into larger accommodation.  The proposed 
scheme would offer jobs for local people and she was working with the 
developers to secure skills for residents in the hotel/hospitality field.  People in 
the estates near the development were aware of the benefits it would bring 
and a large number of young people had made the effort to come along to the 
meeting to show their support.    
 
Mr Zoinul Abidin, speaking in support of the application, indicated that he was 
a Community Worker with experience of running local groups.  He had been 
in contact with the developers for 18 months to suggest what was needed for 
Royal Mint Street residents.  To this end, they were providing space in four 
arches, together with £1m. funding, which was an investment for Tower 
Hamlets.  He felt that the application should be supported as it would provide 
long term community benefits.  In response to a query from the Chair, Mr 
Abidin added that the community provision was not technically included in the 
S106 agreement but the developers were including it as part of the deal.  Mr 
Abidin added that he worked in close partnership with Society Links.  In 
response to questions from Members, he expressed confidence that the 
developers would deliver the facilities they had promised. 
 
 At the request of the Chair, Ms Amy Thompson, Strategic Applications 
Planner, made a detailed presentation of the application, as contained in the 
circulated report and update, including plans and a slideshow. She referred to 
consultation measures, as outlined in the report, and provided a planning 
history of the relevant site.  She stressed that the applicants could not start 
development work until the donor sites had been transferred to Tower 
Hamlets Community Housing (THCH) or another registered social landlord.  
Officers were satisfied that the combined donor schemes would deliver 445 
habitable rooms in a policy compliant mix and split between affordable rented 
and intermediate accommodation. 
 

Page 14



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

5 

Hotel servicing would be undertaken mainly from Chamber Street and was 
proposed to be handled off-street to minimise disruption to traffic flow.  24 
private car parking spaces would be provided in the arches and the six pay 
and display parking spaces that would be lost as a result of the proposals 
would be replaced in Chamber Street. 
 
Ms Megan Nugent, Legal Services Team Leader, explained the process 
whereby the developers had offered a unilateral undertaking, separate from 
the S106 agreement, to refurbish four arches for community use and set up a 
community trust with £1m. funding.  Although this agreement was not made 
through the Council, the developers were legally bound to deliver what they 
had agreed to do. 
 
Members then put questions relating to: 

• Loss of sunlight with particular reference to 30 Prescott Street. 

• The possibility of arrangements for the two donor sites failing to 
proceed with consequences for social housing provision. 

• Possible assistance with relocation of the car park business in Royal 
Mint Street. 

• Concerns relating to some registered social landlords moving away 
from lifelong tenancies. 

• The possibility of obtaining more biodiversity measures in the 
development. 

• Allocation of car parking spaces. 

• Liaison with the Tower of London concerning the application. 

• Possible ringfencing of S106 community funding to Wapping Ward.  

• The large amount of funding directed towards a Crossrail contribution. 
 
Officers’ responses included comments that: 

• The scheme had been substantially modified to take account of 
sunlight issues and although there would be some effects on other 
properties, this did not outweigh the overall benefits that would accrue. 

• The donor sites arrangements were considered secure and work was 
proceeding with THCH, who were signatories to the S106 agreement. 
Work on the development could not proceed until ownership of the 
donor sites had been transferred. 

• THCH had indicated that they would continue to offer lifelong tenancies 
and this had been confirmed by their Management Board. 

• The development when complete would provide much more 
employment than the existing car park – relocation of businesses in 
Newham as a result of the Olympic site had been possible because 
they had been compulsorily purchased.  NOTE: Mr Peter Wilmot of 
Network Rail informed the Committee that they would have discussions 
with the car park owner on the matter of helping to maintain the 
business.  The Chair expressed satisfaction that a commitment to help 
had been made. 

• The biodiversity aspect had been reviewed by the in-house officer and 
detailed landscaping had been approved and a BREEAM energy use 
rating of excellent had been obtained for the scheme. 

Page 15



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

6 

• The development would be car free apart from 26 parking spaces and 
it could be possible to see whether some of these could be allocated to 
family housing units. 

• There had been considerable liaison with Historic Royal Palaces over 
two years and the design had been amended in line with their 
comments – their response to the scheme was now very positive. 

• S106 funding for the provision of education, community and health 
facilities was intended to fulfil Borough-wide requirements, for the good 
of the greater community.  Use of S106 funds was considered by the 
Planning Contributions Overview Panel and the membership thereof 
was under review. 

• The Crossrail contribution was determined by a tried and tested 
formula and had proved non-negotiable during detailed discussions 
with TfL. 

 
Councillor Denise Jones proposed an amendment, seconded by the Chair, 
which was agreed unanimously and is shown as resolution (2) below. 
 
The substantive motion was then put to the vote and was declared carried 
unanimously.  Accordingly it was RESOLVED – 
 

(1) That planning permission be GRANTED at land at Royal Mint Street, 
Mansell Street and Chamber Street, Royal Mint Street, London, for the 
redevelopment of the site for a mixed-use development comprising the 
erection of two buildings of between 3 and 15 storeys, providing 354 
residential units (Use Class C3), a 236 room hotel together with 33 
serviced apartments (Use Class C1), flexible retail/financial 
services/restaurant/café/ drinking establishment/health clinic/business 
space (1172 sqm) (Use Classes A1, A2, A3, A4, D1 and B1), 
restaurant, bar, gallery, leisure (731 sqm) (Use Class A3/A4/D1/D2), 
community uses including sports and training facilities, neighbourhood 
police base and office space within the railway arches (1014 sqm) 
(Use Class D1/D2/B1), creation of a new pedestrian link, together with 
associated works including landscaping, providing of parking, servicing 
and plant area, subject to any direction by the Mayor of London and to 
the prior completion of a legal agreement to secure planning 
obligations and to the planning conditions and informatives as set out 
in the circulated report and amended by the update report Tabled at 
the meeting, but further 

 
(2) That the financial contribution of £50,000 towards the Legible London 

wayfinding scheme, as set out in head (e) of the S106 agreement be 
utilised for signage in East London. 

 
(3)  That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal be delegated 

power to negotiate the legal agreement indicated above. 
 

(4) That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal be delegated 
power to impose planning conditions and informatives on the planning 

Page 16



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

7 

permission to secure the matters listed in the circulated report, as 
amended by the update report Tabled at the meeting. 

 
(5) That, if within three months of the date of this Committee the legal 

agreement has not been completed, the Corporate Director 
Development & Renewal be delegated power to refuse planning 
permission. 

 
(6) That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal provide, as soon 

as possible, a report concerning mechanisms for development of the 
relationship between the membership of the Strategic Development 
Committee and the Planning Contributions Overview Panel, to 
examine options for further Member input on S106 financial 
contributions.  The Corporate Director to attend the meeting of the 
Strategic Development Committee when the report is put forward. 

 
7.1 Land bound by Dongola Rd, Duckett St, Ben Jonson Rd & Harford St, 

Ocean Estate, (Site F) (PA/11/01294)  
 
At the request of the Chair, Mr Jerry Bell, Strategic Applications Manager, 
made a detailed presentation of the circulated report, including plans and a 
slideshow, concerning the application to vary planning permission for land 
bound by Dongola Street, Ben Jonson Road and Harford Street, Ocean 
Estate (PA/11/01294).  He indicated that the application had been put before 
the Committee in view of a petition from residents containing objections 
relating to dust and noise arising from building works and privacy issues. 
 
The Chair declared a further personal interest as some residents had emailed 
him on the matter. 
 
Officers then responded to questions from Members on the proposed window 
and balcony alterations and loss of privacy, indicating that the window 
separation between properties was 18.5m, whereas the policy for a required 
distance was 18m.  Accordingly, there was no non-compliance with policy.       
 
On a vote of 5 for and nil against, with 1 abstention (Councillor Motin Uz-
Zaman requesting that his abstention be recorded), the Committee 
RESOLVED – 
 

(1) That planning permission be granted at Land bound by Dongola 
Road, Duckett Street, Ben Jonson Road and Harford Street, Ocean 
Estate (Site F) to vary condition A1 (approved plans) of planning 
permission PA/09/02585 dated 23rd March 2010 to enable minor 
material amendments to the approved development on Site F only, 
involving: 

 

1) Relocation of the CHP/Electrical Sub-Station and tank room; 
2) Removal of open deck access to courtyard elevations and 

introduction of enclosed corridors; 

Page 17



STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE, 
08/12/2011 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 

 

8 

3) Change of balcony details to Ben Jonson Road from cantilevered to 
recessed; 

4) Reconfiguration of the internal arrangement of the units, relocating all 
3 bedroom maisonettes to ground and first floor level; 

5) Improvements to internal efficiency resulting in additional habitable 
rooms (without an increase in units); 

6) Corresponding changes to window locations and balcony locations; 
7) Removal of entrance core access ramps; 
8) Movement of retail wall 290mm northwards; and 
9) Increase in Hartford Street and Duckett Street front garden depths 

from 1.3m to 1.5m. 
 

(2) That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal be delegated 
power to impose conditions and informatives on the planning 
permission to secure the matters regarding conditions and the S106 
agreement as listed in the circulated report. 

 
(3) That Officers note and take account of Members’ view that a 

consensual solution is preferred in addressing matters of concern 
expressed by petitioners regarding noise nuisance and privacy 
issues. 

 
 
 

8. OTHER PLANNING MATTERS  
 

9. LAND AT VIRGINIA QUAY OFF NEWPORT AVENUE, NEWPORT 
AVENUE, LONDON, E14 (PA/11/01426)  
 
Item withdrawn. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 9.30 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

Vice-Chair, Councillor Bill Turner 
Strategic Development Committee 

 

Page 18



DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

PROCEDURES FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS AT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 
6.1 Where a planning application is reported on the “Planning Applications for Decision” part of the 

agenda, individuals and organisations which have expressed views on the application will be sent a 
letter that notifies them that the application will be considered by Committee. The letter will explain 
the provisions regarding public speaking. The letter will be posted by 1st class post at least five clear 
working days prior to the meeting. 

6.2 When a planning application is reported to Committee for determination the provision for the 
applicant/supporters of the application and objectors to address the Committee on any planning 
issues raised by the application, will be in accordance with the public speaking procedure adopted by 
the relevant Committee from time to time. 

6.3 All requests from members of the public to address a Committee in support of, or objection to, a 
particular application must be made to the Committee Clerk by 4:00pm one clear working day prior to 
the day of the meeting. It is recommended that email or telephone is used for this purpose. This 
communication must provide the name and contact details of the intended speaker and whether they 
wish to speak in support of or in objection to the application. Requests to address a Committee will 
not be accepted prior to the publication of the agenda. 

6.4 Any Committee or non-Committee Member who wishes to address the Committee on an item on the 
agenda shall also give notice of their intention to speak in support of or in objection to the application, 
to the Committee Clerk by no later than 4:00pm one clear working day prior to the day of the meeting. 

6.5 For objectors, the allocation of slots will be on a first come, first served basis. 

6.6 For supporters, the allocation of slots will be at the discretion of the applicant. 

6.7 After 4:00pm one clear working day prior to the day of the meeting the Committee Clerk will advise 
the applicant of the number of objectors wishing to speak and the length of his/her speaking slot. This 
slot can be used for supporters or other persons that the applicant wishes to present the application 
to the Committee. 

6.8 Where a planning application has been recommended for approval by officers and the applicant or 
his/her supporter has requested to speak but there are no objectors or Members registered to speak, 
then the applicant or their supporter(s) will not be expected to address the Committee. 

6.9 Where a planning application has been recommended for refusal by officers and the applicant or 
his/her supporter has requested to speak but there are no objectors or Members registered to speak, 
then the applicant and his/her supporter(s) can address the Committee for up to three minutes. 

6.10 The order of public speaking shall be as stated in Rule 5.3. 

6.11 Public speaking shall comprise verbal presentation only. The distribution of additional material or 
information to Members of the Committee is not permitted. 

6.12 Following the completion of a speaker’s address to the Committee, that speaker shall take no further 
part in the proceedings of the meeting unless directed by the Chair of the Committee. 

6.13 Following the completion of all the speakers’ addresses to the Committee, at the discretion of and 
through the Chair, Committee Members may ask questions of a speaker on points of clarification 
only. 

6.14 In the interests of natural justice or in exceptional circumstances, at the discretion of the Chair, the 
procedures in Rule 5.3 and in this Rule may be varied. The reasons for any such variation shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 

6.15 Speakers and other members of the public may leave the meeting after the item in which they are 
interested has been determined. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 19



• For each planning application up to two objectors can address the Committee for up to three minutes 
each. The applicant or his/her supporter can address the Committee for an equivalent time to that 
allocated for objectors. 

• For each planning application where one or more Members have registered to speak in objection to 
the application, the applicant or his/her supporter can address the Committee for an additional three 
minutes. 

 

Page 20



 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (Section 97) 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief Description of background papers: Tick if copy supplied for register Name and telephone no. of holder: 

Application, plans, adopted UDP. draft 
LDF and London Plan 

ü  Eileen McGrath (020) 7364 5321 

 
 

Committee:  
Strategic Development 
 

Date:  
19th January 2012 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 

Agenda Item No: 
6 

Report of:  
Corporate Director of Development and Renewal 
 
Originating Officer:  
Owen Whalley  
 

Title: Deferred items 
 
Ref No: See reports attached for each item 
 
Ward(s): See reports attached for each item 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report is submitted to advise the Committee of planning applications that have been 

considered at previous meetings and currently stand deferred. 

1.2 There are currently no items that have been deferred. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Committee note the position relating to deferred items. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 (Section 97) 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THE REPORTS UNDER ITEM 7 
 

Brief Description of background papers: Tick if copy supplied for register: Name and telephone no. of holder: 

Application, plans, adopted UDP, Interim 
Planning Guidance and London Plan 

ü  Eileen McGrath (020) 7364 5321 

 

Committee:  
Strategic  
Development 
 

Date:  
  
19th January 2012 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 
 

Agenda Item No: 
7 
 

Report of:  
Corporate Director Development and Renewal 
 
Originating Officer:  
Owen Whalley 
 

Title: Planning Applications for Decision 
 
Ref No: See reports attached for each item 
 
Ward(s): See reports attached for each item 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 In this part of the agenda are reports on planning applications for determination by the 
Committee. Although the reports are ordered by application number, the Chair may reorder 
the agenda on the night. If you wish to be present for a particular application you need to be 
at the meeting from the beginning. 

1.2 The following information and advice applies to all those reports. 

2. FURTHER INFORMATION 

2.1 Members are informed that all letters of representation and petitions received in relation to 
the items on this part of the agenda are available for inspection at the meeting. 

2.2 Members are informed that any further letters of representation, petitions or other matters 
received since the publication of this part of the agenda, concerning items on it, will be 
reported to the Committee in an Addendum Update Report. 

3. ADVICE OF ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL SERVICES) 

3.1 The relevant policy framework against which the Committee is required to consider 
planning applications comprises the Development Plan and other material policy 
documents. The Development Plan is: 

• the adopted Tower Hamlets Unitary Development Plan (UDP)1998 as saved September 
2007 

• the London Plan 2011 

• the Tower Hamlets Core Strategy Development Plan Document 2025 adopted September 
2010  

 
3.2 Other material policy documents include the Council's Community Plan, “Core Strategy 

LDF” (Submission Version) Interim Planning Guidance (adopted by Cabinet in October 
2007 for Development Control purposes), Planning Guidance Notes and government 
planning policy set out in Planning Policy Guidance & Planning Policy Statements and the 
draft National Planning Policy Statement. 

3.3 Decisions must be taken in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  
Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires the Committee to have 
regard to the provisions of the Development Plan, so far as material to the application and 
any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Agenda Item 7

Page 23



Act 2004 requires the Committee to make its determination in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material planning considerations support a different decision 
being taken. 

3.4 Under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects listed 
buildings or their settings, the local planning authority must have special regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of architectural or historic 
interest it possesses. 

3.5 Under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, in 
considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects a 
conservation area, the local planning authority must pay special attention to the desirability 
of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. 

3.6 Whilst the adopted UDP 1998 (as saved) is the statutory Development Plan for the borough 
(along with the Core Strategy and London Plan), it will be replaced by a more up to date set 
of plan documents which will make up the Local Development Framework. As the 
replacement plan documents progress towards adoption, they will gain increasing status as 
a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. 

3.7 The reports take account not only of the policies in the statutory UDP 1998 and Core 
Strategy but also the emerging Local Development Framework documents and their more 
up-to-date evidence base, which reflect more closely current Council and London-wide 
policy and guidance. 

3.8 In accordance with Article 31 of the Development Management Procedure Order 2010, 
Members are invited to agree the recommendations set out in the reports, which have been 
made on the basis of the analysis of the scheme set out in each report. This analysis has 
been undertaken on the balance of the policies and any other material considerations set 
out in the individual reports. 

4. PUBLIC SPEAKING 

4.1 The Council’s constitution allows for public speaking on these items in accordance with the 
rules set out in the constitution and the Committee’s procedures. These are set out at 
Agenda Item 5. 

5. RECOMMENDATION 

5.1 The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached reports. 

Page 24



Committee:  
Strategic Development 
Committee 
 

Date:  
19th January 2011 
 

Classification:  
Unrestricted 
 

Agenda Item No: 
7.1  
 

Report of:  
Corporate Director Development & Renewal 
 
Case Officer:  
Jane Jin 
 

Title: Planning Application for Decision 
 
Ref No: PA/11/00798 
 
Ward(s): Millwall 
 

 
1. APPLICATION DETAILS 
  
 Location: 45 Millhabour, London 
 Existing Use: Two storey offices (Use Class B1) and place of worship (Use Class D1) 

with car parking. 
 Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a part 7 storey & part 14 

storey mixed use building comprising 880sq.m of ground floor commercial 
(A2/A3/B1) floorspace, 132 residential flats (C3), ground level public open 
space and associated underground parking. 

 Drawing Nos: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved 
Documents: 
 

9511-T-00-0002-Z00 Revision 5; 9511-T-00-0099-ZB1 Revision 8; 9511-
T-00-0100-Z00 Revision 9; 9511-T-00-0101-Z01 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-
0102-Z02 Revision 04; 9511-T-00-0103-Z03 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0104-
Z04 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0105-Z05 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0106-Z06 
Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0107-Z07 Revision 4; 9511-T-0108-Z08 Revision 
4; 9511-T-00-0109-Z09 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0110-Z10 Revision 4; 
9511-T-00-0111-Z11 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0112-Z12 Revision 4; 9511-
T-00-0113-Z13 Revision 5; 9511-T-00-0114-Z14 Revision 4; 9511-T-00-
0121-Z00 Revision 5; 9511-T-00-0122-ZXX Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0130-
Z30 Revision 3; 9511-T-00-0200-ZEA Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0201-ZNO 
Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0202-ZSO Revision 5; 9511-T-00-0203-ZWE 
Revision 4; 9511-T-00-0301-ZAA Revision 3; 9511-T-00-0302-ZBB 
Revision 5; 9511-T-00-0303-ZCC Revision 5. 
 
Design and Access Statement Revision 3; 
Technical Note – Response to LHA and TFL; 
Bre Daylighting, sunlighting and overshadowing report; 
Flood Risk Assessment Ref JBR1503; 
Flood Management Plan Revision 1; 
Verifiable photomontage images; 
Planning and Impact Statement Vols. 1 and 2; 
 

 Applicant: Mr M J Hunt c/o Stiles Harold Williams 
 

 Owner: Mr Michael J Hunt 
 Historic 

Building: 
N/A 

 Conservation 
Area: 

N/A 

 
2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
  

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 25



2.1 The Local Planning Authority has considered the particular circumstances of this application 
against the Council's approved planning policies contained in the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets Unitary Development Plan (1998), the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance (2007), 
Adopted Core Strategy (2010), Draft Managing Development DPD (2011), Millennium 
Quarter Master Plan, associated supplementary planning guidance, the London Plan (2011) 
and Government Planning Policy Guidance and has found that: 
 

2.2 The scheme will provide a residential led mixed-use redevelopment with appropriate 
replacement of employment uses.  The scheme would therefore provide opportunities for 
growth and housing in accordance with the objectives as set out in the Millennium Quarter 
Master Plan; policies: SP02 of Core Strategy 2010; DEV3 of the Unitary Development Plan 
1998; and DM3 of Draft Managing Development DPD 2011. 
 

2.4 The building height, scale, bulk and detailed design are acceptable and enhance the 
character and appearance of the surrounding area, in accordance with height bands as 
identified in the Millennium Quarter Master Plan; saved policies: DEV1, DEV2 and DEV37 of 
the adopted Unitary Development Plan (1998), policies DEV1, DEV2 and DEV3 of the 
Interim Planning Guidance (2007), policies SP10 and SP12 of the Core Strategy (2010); and 
DM24 of the Draft Managing Development DPD 2011 which seek to ensure buildings and 
places are of high quality design and suitably located. 
 

2.5 The proposal provides an acceptable amount of affordable housing and mix of units, as 
demonstrated through viability assessment. As such, the proposal is in line with Planning 
Policy Statement 3, policies 3.8, 8.10, 3.11, 3.12, 3.13 of the London Plan (2011), saved 
policy HSG7 of the Council’s Unitary Development Plan (1998), policies HSG2 and HSG3 of 
the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance (2007); policy SP02 of the Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document (2010); and DM3 of the Draft Managing Development DPD 
2011 which seek to ensure that new developments offer a range of housing choices. 
 

2.6 On balance the scheme provides acceptable space standards and layout. As such, the 
scheme is in line with saved policy DEV2 of the Council’s Unitary Development Plan (1998), 
policy DEV1 of Council’s Interim Planning Guidance (2007); policy SP02 of the Core 
Strategy Development Plan Document (2010); and DM4 of the Draft Managing Development 
DPD 2011 which seek to provide an acceptable standard of accommodation. 
 

2.7 The proposed amount of amenity space is acceptable and in line with saved policy HSG16 of 
the Council’s Unitary Development Plan (1998), policy HSG7 of the Council’s Interim 
Planning Guidance (2007); policy SP02 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document 
(2010), and of DM4 of the Draft Managing Development DPD 2011 which seek to improve 
amenity and liveability for residents. 

  
2.8 On balance it is not considered that the proposal would give rise to undue impacts in terms 

of privacy, overlooking, sunlight and daylight, and noise upon the surrounding residents. 
Also, the scheme proposes appropriate mitigation measures to ensure a satisfactory level of 
residential amenity for the future occupiers. As such, the proposal is considered to satisfy the 
relevant criteria of saved policy DEV2 of the Council's Unitary Development Plan (1998), 
policy DEV1 of the Interim Planning Guidance (2007); policy SP10 of the of the Core 
Strategy Development Plan Document (2010) and DM25 of the Draft Managing Development 
DPD 2011, which seek to protect residential amenity. 

  
2.9 Transport matters, including parking, access and servicing, are acceptable and in line with 

policies T16 and T19 of the Council’s Unitary Development Plan (1998), policies DEV17, 
DEV18 and DEV19 of the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance (2007); policy SP08 and 
SP09 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document (2010) and DM20 and DM22of the  
Draft Managing Development DPD 2011, which seek to ensure developments minimise 
parking and promote sustainable transport options.  

Page 26



  

2.10 Contributions have been secured towards the provision of affordable housing; education 
improvements; public realm improvements; community facilities; transportation; health care 
provision and access to employment for local people in line with Regulation 122 of 
Community Infrastructure Levy 2010, Government Circular 05/05, saved policy DEV4 of the 
Council’s Unitary Development Plan (1998), policy IMP1 of the Council’s Interim Planning 
Guidance (2007), and policies SP02 and SP13 of the Core Strategy Development Plan 
Document (2010), and  in accordance with the Millennium Quarter Master Plan Tariff which 
seek to secure contributions toward infrastructure and services required to facilitate 
proposed development. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATION 
  
3.1 That the committee resolves to GRANT planning permission subject to: 
  
 A. Any direction by The Mayor of London 
  
 B. The prior completion of a legal agreement to secure the following planning obligations: 
  
 Financial Contributions 

a) £482,893 towards Education; 
b) £172,260 towards Health; 
c) £202,620 towards the improvement and upgrade of transport infrastructure, public 

realm and open spaces, the provision of training and employment and the securing 
community facilities to achieve the objectives of the Millennium Quarter Master Plan. 

d) £17,155 monitoring fee (2%) 
 
Non-Financial Contributions 

e) Car Free 
f) Local Labour in Construction 
g) Travel Plan 
h) Code of construction practice 
i) Provision of a pedestrian link (public walkway) between Millharbour and Millwall Inner 

Dock 
j) 37% affordable housing by hab rooms – split 27% shared ownership and 73% social 

rent 
k) A commitment to connect to the ‘Barkantine’ Heat Network 

 
Total financial contribution: £874,928 

  
3.2 That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated power to negotiate the 

legal agreement indicated above. 
  
3.3 That the Corporate Director Development & Renewal is delegated power to impose 

conditions and informatives on the planning permission to secure the following matters: 
  
 1) 3 year time limit for Implementation; 

2) Submission of Material samples and detailed drawings; 
3) Compliance with Flood Risk Assessment 
4) Surface water drainage; 
5) Contamination;  
6) Verification report; 
7) No infiltration of surface water drainage; 
8) Piling/foundations; 
9) Scheme of Highways works; 

Page 27



10) Delivery and Service Management Plan; 
11) Construction Management and Logistics Plan;  
12) Electric charging points; 
13) Parking (vehicle, disabled, cycle); 
14) Feasibility study on movement of freight by water; 
15) Details of hard and soft Landscaping scheme, including details of brown roof and child 

play space;  
16) Details of swift boxes and bat roost; 
17) Detailed specification of minimum 10% wheelchair units; 
18) Lifetime Homes; 
19) Details of ventilation and extraction for A3 uses; 
20) Refuse and recycling; 
21) Means of access and egress for people with disabilities; 
22) BREEAM Excellent; 
23) Compliance with energy strategy; 
24) Standard hours of construction; 
25) Power/hammer driven piling/breaking (10am - 4pm Monday to Friday); 
26) Approved plans; and 
27) Any other planning condition(s) considered necessary by the Corporate Director 

Development & Renewal. 
  
 Informatives 
  
 1) Section 106 agreement required; 

2) Definition of superstructure works 
3) Section 278 Highways agreements required; 
4) Contact Thames Water regarding installation of a non-return valve, petrol/oil-interceptors, 

water efficiency measures and storm flows; 
5) Contact Environment Agency; 
6) Contact Thames Water 
7) Contact British Waterways 
8) Any other informative(s) considered necessary by the Corporate Director Development & 

Renewal. 
  
3.4 That if, within three months of the date of this committee the legal agreement has not been 

completed, the Corporate Director of Development & Renewal is delegated power to refuse 
planning permission. 

  
 
4. PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
  
 Proposal 
  
4.1 The proposal is for the redevelopment of the site to erect a part 7 and part 14 storey mixed 

use building comprising 880sq.m. of ground floor commercial (A2/A3/B1), 132 residential 
flats, private roof gardens, ground level public open space and associated basement parking. 

  
 Site and Surroundings 
  
4.2 The application site is located in the centre of Isle of Dogs and falls within an area known as 

Millennium Quarter. The site is approximately 0.43ha and is bounded by 41-43 Millhabour to 
the north, Millwall Inner Dock to the east, 47 Millharbour to the south and Millhabour Road to 
the west.  

  
4.3 The site is occupied by a two storey building and is currently being used as a light 

industrial/office use (B1). A part of the building, 400sq.m on the first floor of the unit, is being 

Page 28



used by a charity as a place of worship (Use Class D1) and initially obtained a temporary 
planning permission in 2005.  

  
4.4 The site immediately to the south at No. 47 Millharbour benefits from an outline planning 

permission for redevelopment of 143 residential units in buildings ranging heights up to 10 
storeys with A1 and A3 uses on the ground floor level. It recently had a time extension to 
implement the planning consent.  Immediately to the north is 41-43 Millharbour, which has 
planning permission for 15 storey residential building comprising 352 units. On the opposite 
side of the site lies Lanterns Court, 21 Millharbour, which has planning permission for 651 
residential units and is currently under construction. 

  

4.5 The surrounding area has undergone major redevelopments and this is reflective of the 
rapidly changing urban and social environment in this part of the Millennium Quarter. This 
vision is outlined and planned out in the Millennium Quarter Master Plan. 

  
4.6 Site Location Plan 

 
 

 Relevant Planning History 
  
4.7 The following planning decisions are relevant to the application: 
  
 LBTH ref. Description 
 PA/05/01269 Change of use of part of the first-floor from offices (B1) to a place of worship 

and for training purposes (D1 Use). Application was approved for a 
temporary 3 year period. 
 

 PA/07/1156 Outline application for demolition of existing buildings and erection of 
buildings up to 22 storeys to provide ground floor retail with 219 residential 
units above. Application was withdrawn. 
 

 PA/08/2590 Change of use of part of two storey office block (400sqm) from business use 
(Use Class B1) to a place of worship with ancillary uses (Use Class D1). 

Page 29



Application was approved. 
 

 
5. POLICY FRAMEWORK 
  
5.1 For details of the status of relevant policies see the front sheet for “Planning Applications for 

Determination” agenda items. The following policies are relevant to this application: 
   
 Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London (London Plan) 
  1.1 Delivering the strategic vision and objectives of London 
  2.5 Sub regions 
  2.13 Opportunity areas and intensification areas 
  3.1 

3.2 
3.3 

Ensuring equal life chances for all 
Improving health and assessing health inequalities 
Increasing housing supply 

  3.5 Quality and design for housing developments 
  3.6 Children and young people’s play and informal recreation 

facilities 
  3.8  Housing choice 
  3.9 Mixed and balanced communities 
  3.10  Definition of affordable housing 
  3.12 

3.13 
Negotiating affordable housing 
Affordable housing thresholds 

  4.1 Developing London’s economy 
  4.2 Offices 
  4.3 Mixed use developments and offices 
  4.12 Improving opportunities for all 
  5.1 Climate change mitigation 
  5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
  5.3 Sustainable design and construction 
  5.6 Decentralised energy in new developments 
  5.7 Renewable energy 
  5.8 Innovative energy technologies 
  5.9 Overheating and cooling 
  5.11 Green roofs and development site environs 
  5.12 Flood risk management 
  5.13 Sustainable drainage 
  5.14 Water quality and waste water infrastructure 
  5.15 Water use and supplies 
  5.21 Contaminated Land 
  6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
  6.5 Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport 

infrastructure 
  6.9 Cycling 
  6.10 Walking 
  6.13 Parking 
  7.1 Building London’s neighbourhoods and communities 
  7.2 Inclusive environment 
  7.3 Designing out crime 
  7.4 Local character 
  7.5 Public realm 
  7.6 Architecture 
  7.7 Location and design of large and tall buildings 
  7.11 London view management framework 
  7.12 Implementing the LVMF 
  7.13 Safety, security and resilience to emergency 

Page 30



  7.14 Improving air quality 
  7.15 Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
  7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature 
  8.2 Planning obligations 
    
 Unitary Development Plan 1998 (as saved September 2007) 
 Proposals:  Central Area Zone 
   Flood Protection Area 
    
 Policies:   
  DEV1 Design Requirements  
  DEV2 Environmental Requirements  
  DEV3 Mixed Use Developments  
  DEV4 Planning Obligations  
  DEV8 Protection of Local Views  
  DEV9 Control of Minor Works 
  DEV12 Provision Of Landscaping in Development  
  DEV46 Protection of Waterway Corridors 
  DEV50  Noise 
  DEV51 Contaminated Soil  
  DEV55 Development and Waste Disposal 
  DEV56 Waste Recycling 
  DEV69 Efficient Use of Water 
  EMP1 Promoting economic growth and employment opportunities 
  EMP3 Change of use of office floorspace 
  EMP10 Development Elsewhere in the Borough 
  HSG7 Dwelling Mix and Type  
  HSG13 Internal Space Standards  
  HSG16 Housing Amenity Space 
  T10 Priorities for Strategic Management 
  T16  Traffic Priorities for New Development  
  T18 Pedestrians and the Road Network  
  T21 Pedestrians Needs in New Development 
  S10 Requirements for New Shop front Proposals 
  OS9 Children’s Playspace 
  U2 Development in Areas at Risk from Flooding 
  
 Interim Planning Guidance for the purposes of Development Control 
 Proposals:  Development Site ID44  
    
 Policies: DEV1 Amenity 
  DEV2 Character and Design 
  DEV3 Accessibility and Inclusive Design 
  DEV4 Safety and Security 
  DEV5 Sustainable Design 
  DEV6 Energy Efficiency 
  DEV7 Water Quality and Conservation 
  DEV8 Sustainable Drainage  
  DEV9 Sustainable Construction Materials  
  DEV10 Disturbance from Noise Pollution  
  DEV11 Air Pollution and Air Quality  
  DEV12 Management of Demolition and Construction 
  DEV13 Landscaping and Tree Preservation 
  DEV15 Waste and Recyclables Storage  
  DEV16 Walking and Cycling Routes and Facilities  
  DEV17 Transport Assessments 

Page 31



  DEV18  Travel Plans  
  DEV19 Parking for Motor Vehicles  
  DEV20  Capacity of Utility Infrastructure 
  DEV21 Flood Risk Management 
  DEV22 Contaminated Land  
  DEV25 Social Impact Assessment 
  DEV27  Tall Buildings Assessment  
  EE2 Redevelopment/Change of Use of Employment Sites 
  HSG1 Determining Housing Density  
  HSG2 Housing Mix  
  HSG3 Affordable Housing  
  HSG7 Housing Amenity Space  
  HSG9 Accessible and Adaptable Homes  
  HSG10  Calculating Provision of Affordable Housing  
  CON5 Protection and Management of Important Views  
 Isle of Dogs Area Action Plan  
  IOD1 Spatial Strategy 
  IOD2 Transport and Movement 
  IOD3 Health Provision 
  IOD4 Education Provision 
  IOD5 Public Open Space 
  IOD6 Water Space 
  IOD7 Flooding 
  IOD8  Infrastructure Capacity 
  IOD9 Waste 
  IOD10 Infrastructure and services 
  IOD18 Employment uses in the Central sub-area 
  IOD19 Residential uses in Central sub-area 
  IOD20 Retail and leisure uses in the Central sub-area 
  IOD21 Design and built form in the Central sub-area 
  
 Millennium Quarter Master Plan 
                              
 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 
  London Housing Design Guide 2010 
  
 Core Strategy Development Plan Document (Adopted September 2010) 
 Policies: SP01 Refocusing on our town centres 
  SP02 Urban living for everyone 
  SP03 Creating healthy and liveable neighbourhoods 
  SP04 Creating a green and blue grid 
  SP05 Dealing with waste 
  SP06 Delivering successful employment hubs 
  SP07 Improving education and skills 
  SP08 Making connected places 
  SP09 Creating attractive and safe streets and spaces 
  SP10 Creating distinct and durable places 
  SP11 Working towards a zero-carbon borough 
  SP12 Delivering placemaking – Tower of London Vision, Priorities 

and Principles 
  
 Managing Development - Development Plan Document (DPD) 

Draft Proposed Submission Version 

 Proposal Site 27 Millennium Quarter 
  
 Policies: DM3 Delivering Homes 

Page 32



  DM4 Housing Standards and amenity space 
  DM8 Contributing to healthy and active lifestyles 
  DM9 Improving air quality 
  DM10 Delivering Open space 
  DM11 Living Buildings and biodiversity 
  DM12 Water spaces 
  DM13 Sustainable drainage 
  DM14 Managing Waste 
  DM15 Local job creation and investment 
  DM16 Office Locations 
  DM20 Integrating development with a sustainable transport network 
  DM21 Sustainable transport of freight 
  DM22 Parking 
  DM23 Streets and public realm 
  DM26 Amenity 
  DM27 Sustainable neighbourhoods and place-sensitive design 
  DM28 Tall buildings 
  DM29 Achieving a Zero-carbon borough and addressing climate 

change 
  DM30 Contaminated Land 
    
 Government Planning Policy Guidance/Statements 
  PPS1 Delivering Sustainable Development 
  PPS3 Housing 
  PPS4 Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth 
  PPS9 Biodiversity and Geological Conservation 
  PPS12 Local Spatial Planning 
  PPS22 Renewable Energy  
  PPS23 Planning and Pollution Control 
  PPS25 Flood Risk 
    
 Draft National Planning Policy Framework 
  
 Community Plan The following Community Plan objectives relate to the application: 
  A better place for living safely 
  A better place for living well 
  A better place for creating and sharing prosperity 
 
6. CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
  
6.1 The views of the Directorate of Development and Renewal are expressed in the MATERIAL 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below: 
  
6.2 The following were consulted regarding the application:  
  
 LBTH Biodiversity 
  
6.3 The proposal include green roofs, but these are mostly formal terraces to provide open 

space and are proposed to be largely hard decking with limited planting. These will be of 
very limited biodiversity value. The design statement refers to brown roofs at a higher level 
and the provision of brown roofs on any roof space not occupied by the formal terraces or by 
plant should be secured by a way of condition. The provision should also include swift boxes 
and bat roosts. 
 
[Officer’s comment: An appropriately worded condition will be imposed] 

  

Page 33



 LBTH Education  
  
6.4 Based on the Council’s Draft Planning Obligations SPD, the proposal would result in the 

need for 19 additional primary places at £14,830 per place, and 9 additional secondary 
school places at £22,347 per place. Accordingly, the total education financial contribution 
sought is £482,893. 

  
 LBTH Design and Conservation 
  
6.5 Design and conservation have no objections to the proposed scheme. Details of materials 

should be secured as part of a condition. 
  
 LBTH Energy Efficiency 
  
6.6 The proposal aim to achieve a Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 rating and have a 45% 

improvement over baseline carbon emissions from energy efficiency and a connection to 
Barkentine Heat network. The proposal also includes PV installation on the rooftops of Block 
A and D which represents 3% Carbon Savings. Suitably worded condition should be 
imposed to ensure that the energy strategy as submitted is implemented. 
 
[Officer’s Comment: Appropriately worded condition will be imposed and connection to 
Barkentine Heat network has been secured through S106] 

  
 LBTH Environmental Health 
  
 
 
6.7 

Air Quality 
 
No response received, however condition to secure air quality management plan considered 
acceptable.  

  
 
 
6.8 

Noise & Vibration 
 
The Environmental Health section is satisfied with the proposal subject to sound insulation to 
be installed which would comply with Part E of the Building Regulations. This can be secured 
through condition. 

  
 
 
6.9 
 
 

Land Contamination 
 
The proposal is likely to result in the excavation of a large amount of contamination. As such, 
a condition requiring further contamination investigation and mitigation works should be 
attached if planning permission is granted. 

  
 LBTH Highways and Strategic Transport 
  
6.10 • The site has a PTAL rating of 2 which demonstrates that a moderate level of public 

transport service is available within the immediate vicinity of the site; 

• The proposed level of parking provision (42 spaces) would comply with the maximum 
standards, however the Highways section maintains that this should be reduced 
further, and the scheme should be car-free; 

• The proposal includes 16 disabled parking spaces, which the highways section 
accepts; 

• The proposal includes 8 spaces to be allocated to the Social Rented housing; 

• A Car-Free Agreement is recommended; 

• Servicing arrangements are proposed to take place within the basement level and 
service management plan is required to be secured via condition; 

Page 34



• Residential cycle parking provision of 272 cycle spaces (minimum 1:1) complies with 
policy and is therefore acceptable. 26 visitor spaces associated with the proposed 
commercial uses are provided within the public realm; 

• The applicant should ensure that the cycle storage areas are secure; 

• A Section 278 Highway Agreement is required; 

• A full travel plan is to be submitted for approval prior to the occupation of the 
proposed development; 

 
(Officer Comment: These comments are discussed in section 8 of this report) 

  
 LBTH Housing  
  
6.11 Support the proposal for the following reasons: 

 

• This development would produce 37% affordable housing by habitable rooms. 
 

• Within the 37% affordable offer, the proposed tenure split between social rent and 
intermediate accommodation is 73:27 (by habitable rooms) This falls close to policy 
SP02(4) set our in the Councils Core Strategy. 

 

• The unit mix within the social rented proposes 30% one beds against the Council’s 
target of 25%, 38% two beds against the target of 25%, 25% three beds against a 
target of 30%. 13% of four bed units against target of 15%. 

 

• This scheme delivers 38% family housing against our retained policy HSG2 target of 
45%.  This current amendment to the previous proposal scheme seeks to provide 
larger family units (4x4bed) within the scheme. 

 

• The proposal includes 11% provision of wheelchair units within the scheme. The 
borough currently has a high demand for large family sized wheelchair units in the 
social rented tenure.   

 

• The four bed units have incorporated a separate kitchen.   
  
6.12 No comments received. 
  
 LBTH Waste Policy and Development 
  
6.13 Separate refuse storage is provided within the proposed development. This is acceptable. 
  
 LBTH Primary Care Trust (PCT) 
  
6.14 According to the HUDU model, the scheme would require a capital contribution of £177,414 

to mitigate against additional impacts on health services.  
  
 Crossrail 
  
6.15 No individual response received, however Crossrail is represented in TfL response. 
  
 Environment Agency (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.16 No objection subject to a conditions: 

1. In accordance with submitted FRA 
2. Surface water drainage 
3. Contamination 

Page 35



4. Remediation Strategy 
5. Verification plan 
6. No infiltration of surface water drainage 
7. piling and other foundations 

  
 Greater London Authority (GLA) (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.17 • Opportunity Areas: The principle of the proposed residential development within the 

Isle of Dogs Opportunity Area, would comply with the London Plan policy 2.13; 

• Social Infrastructure and community facilities: The applicant should provide evidence 
demonstrating that reasonable steps have been taken to facilitate the relocation of 
the existing place of worship at the site to ensure the application would accord with 
London Plan policy 3.1; 

• Urban Design: The applicant should provide justification for the location of the 
pedestrian route at the north, rather than the south, of the site, provide an accurate 
visual representation of the proposal from LVMF assessment point 5A.1, address 
concerns regarding roof terrace spaces and overshadowing of the linear open space 
to the north of the site. The applicant should also seek to ensure the west and east 
frontages are refined to present a strong building line at Millharbour, and to optimise 
the relationship with the dock, to ensure the application would accord with the London 
Plan policies on design. 

• Inclusive access: Proposed commitments for the provision of wheelchair accessible 
units and Lifetime Homes should be secured by planning condition. 

• Sustainable development: The proposal needs to address the concerns regarding 
district heating, active cooling, renewable energy, urban greening and minimising 
water use to ensure that the development complies with London Plan policies 5.5, 
5.7, 5.9, 5.1 and 5.15; 

• Transport: The applicant should address concerns to parking provision, electric 
charging points, cycle parking, bus network contributions, delivery and service plan 
and construction and logistics plan, to ensure the application would comply with the 
London Plan policies 6.7, 6.13 and 6.14. 

 
[Officer’s comment: The applicant have addressed majority of concerns raised by the GLA 
which is discussed in Section 8 of this report] 

  
 National Air Traffic Services Ltd (NATS) (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.18 The proposed development has been examined from a technical safeguarding aspect and 

does not conflict with our safeguarding criteria. Accordingly, NATS Limited has no 
safeguarding objections to this proposal. 

  
 London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.19 If existing water supplies are maintained the provision of water supplies for use by the Fire 

Services should be adequate. The submitted plan would also indicate that Brigade access 
should not be problematic. This specific matter will be discussed further at the Building 
Control consultation stage. 

  
 Metropolitan Police (Crime Prevention Officer) 
  
6.20 
 

Concern raised regarding the cycle storage located on the Basement level which does not 
include storage cages. 
 
[Officer’s comment: The cycle parking areas are now secured and storage cages are now 
proposed.] 

  

Page 36



 Natural England (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.21 Natural England welcomes the ecological enhancement recommendations within the 

submitted ecological assessment, particularly the inclusion of a green or brown roof within 
the development. This would have multiple benefits for urban biodiversity and tie in with this 
area’s Local Biodiversity Action Plan targets. 

  
 Thames Water 
  
6.22 Thames Water has no objections in relation to water infrastructure, and recommend an 

informative to be added. 
  
 Transport for London (TfL) (Statutory Consultee) 
  
6.23 - Accepts the reduced level of parking from 45 to 42 which represents 0.3 spaces per 

dwelling.  
- Electric vehicle provision confirmed and should be secured by a condition. 
- Car-free agreement is welcomed. 
- The existing floor space generates a theoretical charge higher than that which would 

be required by the proposed development. In such circumstances, no contribution 
towards Crossrail is required. 

- Cycle parking has been increased to 272 spaces which is welcomed. 
- The travel plan has been revised and will be secured by s106. As the service and 

delivery activity unlikely to be significant, the DSP could be included with the travel 
plan as opposed to being a standalone document. 

- Construction logistic plan is required to be secure via condition. 
- Contribution towards buses will be required. 

  
 British Waterways 
  
6.24 British Waterways raises no objection subject to provision of conditions and the provision of 

a management service agreement for residents. 
  
 
7. LOCAL REPRESENTATION 
  
7.1 A total of 1979 neighbouring properties within the area shown on the map appended to this 

report were notified about the application and invited to comment. The application has also 
been publicised in East End Life and on site. The number of representations received from 
neighbours and local groups in response to notification and publicity of the application were 
as follows: 

  
 No of individual responses: 11 Objecting: 11 Supporting: 0 
  

No of petitions received: 
 
None 

  
7.2 The following issues were raised in representations that objected to the proposal and are 

material to the determination of the application. These are addressed in the next section of 
this report: 
 

• Excessive Height 
[Officer Comment: The height bands as identified in the MQMP suggest 11-15 storeys for the 
application site location. The MQMP identifies reduction in height from North to South. The 
site is a storey lower than its neighbouring building at No 41] 
 

• Privacy Issue 

Page 37



[Officer comment: As discussed in section 8 of this report, the separation distance between 
habitable rooms maintain 18m which is adequate]  
 

• Removal of trees 
[Officer comment: As discussed in section 8 of this report, a landscaping details which is to 
be secured through a condition will seek to have replacement trees] 
 

• Range of colours proposed for the building is not in keeping with the character of any 
other buildings within the vicinity.  

[Officer comment :The Council’s design officer did not have any objections to the use of 
colours however detailed materials are reserved as condition] 
 

• Too many residential/apartment developments along Millharbour 
[Officer comment: The area within Millennium Quarter is an area of regeneration which 
supports residential use] 
 

• Loss of employment  
[Officer comment: As discussed within section 8 of this report, it is considered that the re-
provision of employment space, and the area being recognised for residential led 
regeneration, the loss of employment floorspace is satisfactorily justified] 
 

• Impacts of demolition and construction will include dust, noise and traffic 
[Officer comment: This phase of the development would be closely monitored through an 
Environmental Management Plan and Construction Management Plan, thus this concern 
would be dealt with if planning permission were granted] 
 

• Loss of Sunlight 
(Officer comment: As discussed within section 8 of this report, on balance, it is not 
considered the proposal would have a detrimental impact on the neighbouring properties) 
 

• Parking difficult to accommodate on site 
(Officer comment: The amount and location of parking on site is considered acceptable, as 
discussed further in section 8 of this report) 
 

• Insufficient social infrastructure 
(Officer comment: Appropriate financial contributions have been secured for Health and 
education) 
 

• Insufficient parking and bus capacity 
(Officer comment: The proposal is to secure a car-free agreement and appropriate 
contribution towards buses through the Millennium Quarter Master Plan Tariff will be 
secured) 

  
 
8. MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
  
8.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must consider are: 

 
1. Land Use 
2. Housing 
3. Design 
4. Amenity 
5. Transport 
6. Sustainability 
7. Section 106 Agreement  

Page 38



  
 Land Use 
  
8.2 National, regional and local policy promotes a mixed use development approach on this 

site, subject to the following considerations. 
  
8.3 In respect of national policy, PPS 1 ‘Creating Sustainable Development’, promotes the 

more efficient use of land with higher density, mixed-use schemes. It suggests using 
previously developed, vacant and underutilised sites to achieve national targets. The 
effective use of land and the range of incentives/interventions to facilitate this are also 
encouraged in PPS3 ‘Housing’. 

  
8.4 Planning Policy Statement 12 ‘Local Spatial Planning’ iterates the importance of spatial 

planning in creating strong, safe and prosperous communities. It promotes spatial planning 
through the allocation of strategic sites, through masterplanning using an area action plan 
or through a supplementary planning document. 

  
8.5 In respect of regional policy, the site lies within the Isle of Dogs Opportunity Area as 

identified in policies 2.13 of the London Plan (2011).  The London Plan notes that parts of 
the Opportunity Area, South of Canary Wharf, have significant potential to accommodate 
new homes and there is scope to convert surplus business capacity to housing and to 
support a wider mix of services for residents, worker and visitors.  

  
 Loss of Office Use and D1 use 
  
8.6 The 1200sq.m. of the existing floor space of the building is currently being used for offices 

(B1) and 400sq.m located on the first floor is being used by a charity as a place of worship. 
  
8.7 The proposal would result in a net loss of the existing employment generating use and D1 

use on this site. However, together with the re-provision of some employment generating 
activities, the proposal would meet the Spatial Strategy for the Isle of Dogs as outlined in 
the Isle of Dogs Area Action Plan. The application site falls within an area identified for 
New Housing Focus and the site has been allocated as a preferred use for residential 
development (site ID23), therefore the loss of employment floor space and D1 use is 
acceptable in this instance.  The site is also identified in the Millennium Quarter Master 
Plan and Site Allocations within the emerging draft Managing Development DPD 
(Proposed Submission Version) as an area for comprehensive mixed use development 
opportunity to provide a strategic housing development. 

  
8.8 In terms of the existing D1 use on the site, it is worthwhile to note that the D1 use was 

initially granted temporary planning permission for a period of 3 years in 2005. It renewed 
its permission in 2008 however, it was considered at the time of determination that the use 
would not hinder the spatial plans for the area and therefore full planning permission was 
given. The occupiers of the D1 use are in full understanding that the lease arrangement 
with the applicant (owners) were on a temporary arrangement and have provided the 
Council with information that they are actively seeking alternative location for their 
relocation.  

  
8.9 On balance, the proposed land use is considered to be beneficial to the area and follows 

the overall spatial plans for the Millharbour within Isle of Dogs.  
  
 A2, A3 and B1 uses 
  
8.10 The application proposes commercial spaces on the ground floor, to include A2 (Financial 

and Professional Services) to Millhabour street frontage, A3 (restuartant/café) to Millwall 
Inner Dock, together with three SME’s/office units. The provision of these uses will assist in 

Page 39



activating the ground floor, and in policy terms would provide re-provision of office uses on 
the site, and are therefore considered acceptable in the context of the overall development. 

  
 Residential Use 
  
8.11 The site sits within the Isle of Dogs as an Opportunity Area identified in the London Plan 

(2011). Opportunity Areas across London have the capacity for 233,600 additional homes 
of which 10,000 new homes in Isle of Dogs Opportunity Area. Annex 1 of the London Plan 
states that parts of the Opportunity Area, south of Canary Wharf, have significant potential 
to accommodate new homes, and there is scope to convert surplus business capacity to 
housing, and to support a wider mix of services for residents, workers and visitors. Policy 
SP02 of the Council’s Core Strategy (2010) states that the borough will seek to deliver 
43,275 new homes (borough wide) from 2010 to 2025 in line with the housing targets set 
out in the London Plan.  

  
8.12 Given the site’s location, the proposed land uses are supported, in line with the spatial plan 

as set out in the Isle of Dogs Opportunity Area (London Plan 2011), and the Council’s Core 
Strategy 2010, together with its Millennium Quarter Master Plan 2000.  

  
 Density 
  
8.13 Policy HSG1 of the IPG specifies that the highest development densities, consistent with 

other Plan policies will be sought throughout the Borough.  The supporting text states that, 
when considering density, the Council deems it necessary to assess each proposal 
according to the nature and location of the site, the character of the area, the quality of the 
environment and type of housing proposed.  Consideration is also given to standard of 
accommodation for prospective occupiers, microclimate, impact on neighbours and 
associated amenity standards. 

  
8.14 London Plan (2011) policy 3.4 seeks to optimise housing potential, having regard to local 

context, design principles and public transport accessibility. 
  
8.15 The site has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 2, and its immediate setting is 

urban character.  For urban sites with a PTAL range of 2, both the IPG and London Plan 
density matrix suggest a density of between 200-450 habitable rooms per hectare. The 
proposed density would be 904 habitable rooms per hectare which is above the density 
guidance range of the London Plan and IPG. However, the intent of the London Plan and 
Council’s IPG is to maximise the highest possible intensity of use compatible with local 
context, good design principles and public transport capacity.  

  
8.16 It should be remembered that density only serves an indication of the likely impact of 

development. Typically high density schemes may have an unacceptable impact on the 
following areas: 

• Access to sunlight and daylight; 

• Lack of open space and amenity space; 

• Increased sense of enclosure; 

• Loss of outlook; 

• Increased traffic generation; and 

• Impacts on social and physical infrastructure. 
  
8.17 It should also be noted that developments recently approved within the Millennium Quarter 

have comparable densities as the proposed scheme. 
  
8.18 As detailed within this report, officers consider that on balance the subject site can 

accommodate a high density development in line with the suggested PTAL range, and the 
above symptoms of over-development are not prevalent in this case. 

Page 40



  
 Housing 
  
 Affordable Housing 
  
8.19 The Draft National Planning Policy Framework notes that “…where affordable housing is 

required, (local authorities should) set policies for meeting this need on site, unless off-site 
provision or a financial contribution of broadly equivalent value can be robustly justified (for 
example to improve or make more effective use of the existing housing stock) and the 
agreed approach contributes to the objective of creating mixed and balanced communities” 

  
8.20 Policy 3.11 of the London Plan seeks the maximum reasonable amount of affordable 

housing, and to ensure that 60% is social housing, and 40% is intermediate housing. Policy 
3.9 seeks to promote mixed and balanced communities, with a mixed balance of tenures. 

  
8.21 Policies SO7 and SO8 of the Core Strategy (2010) seek to ensure that housing growth is 

delivered to meet housing demand in line with the London Plan, and ensure that housing 
contributes to the creation of socially balanced and inclusive communities, through delivery 
of housing reflecting the Councils priorities. 

  
8.22 Policy SP02 of the Core Strategy (2010) states that the Council will seek to maximise all 

opportunities for affordable housing on each site, in order to achieve a 50% affordable 
housing target across the Borough, with a minimum of 35% affordable housing provision 
being sought. This policy seeks a split of 70% social rent to 30% intermediate housing 
provision. 

  
8.23 Under a new national planning policy statement, PPS3, issued in June 2011, the definition 

of affordable housing has changed and now includes social rented, a new product called 
affordable rented, and intermediate housing. 

  
8.24 Social rented housing is defined as: Rented housing owned and managed by local 

authorities and registered social landlords, for which guideline target rents are determined 
through the national rent regime. It may also include rented housing owned or managed by 
other persons and provided under equivalent rental arrangements to the above, as agreed 
with the local authority or with the Homes and Communities Agency as a condition of grant. 

  
8.25 Affordable rented housing is defined as: Rented housing let by registered providers of 

social housing to households who are eligible for social rented housing. Affordable Rent is 
not subject to the national rent regime but is subject to other rent controls that require a 
rent of no more than 80% of the local market rent. 

  
8.26 Intermediate affordable housing is defined as: Housing at prices and rents above those of 

social rent, but below market price or rents, and which meet the criteria set out above. 
These can include shared equity products (e.g. HomeBuy), other low cost homes for sale 
and intermediate rent but does not include affordable rented housing. 

  
8.27 A total of 44 of the 132 residential units within the proposal would be affordable housing, 

which represents a total provision of 37% based on habitable rooms. Of the 44 units, 32 of 
the residential units would be Social Rented which represents 73% and 12 residential units 
would be Intermediate, representing 27%. 

  
8.28 The affordable housing offer therefore generally accords with policies 3.9, 3.11 and 3.12 of 

the London Plan, Policy HSG3 of the IPG, and policy SP02 of the Core Strategy, in that it 
delivers the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing particularly within the  
social rented tenure. The proposal will deliver a mix of housing tenures, and thus officers 
are satisfied that the proposal is delivering mixed and balanced communities.  

Page 41



  
 Housing Mix  
  
8.29 Planning Policy Statement 3 states that “key characteristics of a mixed community are a 

variety of housing, particularly in terms of tenure and price and a mix of different 
households such as families with children, single person households and older people”. 

  
8.30 Pursuant to policy 3.8 of the London Plan, the development should “…offer a range of 

housing choices, in terms of housing sizes and types, taking account of the housing 
requirements of different groups’. Table 1 below shows the proposed unit mix on the Site.  

  
8.31 Pursuant to saved policy HSG7 of the LBTH UDP (1998), new housing development 

should provide a mix of unit sizes where appropriate, including a substantial proportion of 
family dwellings of between 3 and 6 bedrooms. On developments of 30 dwellings or more, 
family dwellings should normally be in the form of houses with private gardens.  

  
8.32 Policy SP02 of the Core Strategy Development Plan Document (2010) seeks to create 

mixed communities. A mix of tenures and unit sizes assist in achieving these aims.  
  
8.33 According to policy HSG2 of the IPG, the family housing provision in the rented, 

intermediate and private sale components should be 45%, 25% and 20% respectively. 
Table 1 below sets out the proposed mix on the Site. 

  
 Table 1: Unit Mix  
8.34  

    

Social Rent Intermediate private sale 

Unit size Total 
units in 
scheme 

units % target % units % target % units % target   % 

1 bed 50 8 25 20 3 25 25 39 44 50 

2 bed 43 12 37.5 35 3 25 50 28 32 30 

3 bed 35 8 45 6 21 20 

4 bed 4 4 

37.5 

  

50 25 

 

24 

 

TOTAL 132 32 100 100 12   88 100 100 

 
  
8.35 Whilst the number of social rented family sized units falls short of the policy requirement, it 

is not considered to be a significant shortfall. Given that all the larger 4 bed units are within 
the social rented sector, on balance, officers consider this to be acceptable.  Furthermore, 
there is double the provision of family units within the intermediate tenure which 
traditionally tends to underperform in this area. Overall, it is considered that the proposal 
offers a range of housing choice as promoted by national, regional and local policies 
identified above.  

  
 Wheelchair Housing and Lifetime Homes 
  
8.36 Policy HSG9 of the Interim Planning Guidance requires housing to be designed to Lifetime 

Homes Standards including 10% of all housing to be designed to a wheelchair accessible 
or “easily adaptable” standard. The application incorporates these principles. Within the 
affordable housing cores (Core B and Core C) the units are serviced by one lift in each 
core. Whilst it is desirable to have two lifts servicing each core, due to physical constraints 
of blocks B and C re-designing of the cores would result in loss of affordable habitable 
rooms. Therefore, on balance, the provision of 10% wheelchair homes together with 100% 

Page 42



lifetime homes is acceptable in these circumstances. 
  
8.37 If planning permission is approved, appropriate conditions should be attached to secure 

the delivery of accessible residential units, and parking spaces.   
  
 Floorspace Standards 
  
8.38 Saved policy HSG13 ‘Conversions and Internal Space Standards for Residential Space’ of 

the adopted UDP 1998 and Supplementary Planning Guidance ‘Residential Space’ 
(adopted 1998) set the minimum space standards for residential developments. 

  
8.39 Policy 3.5 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that the design and quality of housing 

developments are of the highest standard internally, externally and to the wider 
environment. This includes new space standards from the London Housing Design Guide. 

  
8.40 The proposal satisfies the minimum dwelling standards as set out in table 3.3 in the 

London Plan 2011. 
  
 Amenity Space 
  
8.41 Pursuant to PPS3, paragraph 16 states that the matters to consider, when assessing 

design quality in housing developments, include the extent to which the proposed 
development “provides, or enables good access to, community and green and open 
amenity and recreational space (including play space) as well as private outdoor space 
such as residential gardens, patios and balconies”. Further still, paragraph 17 of PPS3 
states that “where family housing is proposed, it will be important to ensure that the needs 
of children are taken into account and that there is good provision of recreational areas, 
including private gardens, play areas and informal play space”. 

  

8.42 Saved policy HSG16 ‘Housing Amenity Space’ of the adopted UDP (1998) requires 
schemes to incorporate adequate provision of amenity space. The Residential Space SPG 
(1998) sets the minimum space criteria. Similarly, Policy HSG7 ‘Housing Amenity Space’ 
of the IPG (2007) sets minimum criteria for private as well as communal and children’s 
playspace. It should be noted that the policy states that variation from the minimum 
provision of communal space can be considered where the Council accepts the provision 
of a high quality, useable and public accessible open space in the immediate area of the 
site. The amenity space standards and Child play space standards of the UDP and IPG 
are summarised in tables 2 and 3 below. 

  
8.43 Table 2: Amenity Space SPG 1998  and IPG 2007 standards 

 
 Type No.  Proposed 

(sq.m) 
UDP (SPG) 
Minimum Standard 
(sqm)* 

IPG Minimum Standard 
(sqm)┼ 

Communal 
Space  

132 
units 1123 

 
182 

 
172 

*Calculation based on 50sqm, plus an additional 5sqm per 5 units 
┼
Calculation based on 50sq.m for the first 10 units, plus a further 5sq.m for every 5 additional units 

thereafter. 

  
8.44 Table 3: Child Play space Standards 

 
Type No.  Proposed 

(sq.m) 
UDP (SPG) 
Minimum Standard 
(sqm)* 

GLA’s standard (sq.m)┼ 

Child Play 51 510   

Page 43



space  Children 150 510  
 *Calculation based on 3sqm per child 

┼
Calculation based on 10sq.m per child. 

  
Private Amenity Space 

8.45 The scheme proposes 1633sqm of total combined private amenity space which is above 
the minimum total requirement for 132 residential units.  

  
8.46 All of the units benefit from private space in the form of either a balcony or private terrace. 

Additionally, as noted below the scheme provides a substantial amount of communal 
amenity space for the use of residents, which is considered an appropriate response given 
the urban nature of the site.  

  
 Communal Amenity Space 
8.47 A total of 1123sqm of communal amenity space is proposed on site. 440sq.m of the 

communal space is located on the street level as a linear landscaped are and can be 
accessible for the public. 643sq.m is provided on the 6th roof terrace which can only be 
accessed by Cores A and D within the development, which is considered acceptable. The 
linear landscaped area actually totals 990sq.m, however 510sq.m is allocated children’s 
play area. 

  
 Public Open Space 
8.48 The ground floor linear landscaped amenity space is accessible to the public and the 

proposal also creates a publicly accessible pedestrian link between Millharbour and 
Millwall Inner Dock.  

  
8.49 Given the urban nature of the development site, provision of communal amenity space 

substantially in excess of Council policy, and proximity of several parks within 15 minutes 
walk of the subject site, with appropriate mitigation through a financial contribution towards 
the delivery of open space, the proposal is considered acceptable in this respect. 

  
 Play Space 
  
8.50 Based on the Tower Hamlets Planning for Population Change and Growth Capacity 

Assessment 2009 the proposed mix would result in a child yield of 51 children. This yield 
calculation is evidence based and Tower Hamlets specific, and is therefore considered a 
more accurate representation than the yield used by the GLA as outlined within the 
Mayor’s supplementary planning guidance ‘Providing for Children and Young People’s Play 
and Informal Recreation’. 

  
8.51 The Councils UDP (1998) seeks a minimum 3sqm play space per child, however the 

Mayor’s supplementary planning guidance ‘Providing for Children and Young People’s Play 
and Informal Recreation’ seeks 10sqm per child. Accordingly, a figure between the 3sqm 
and 10sqm threshold should be accommodated. 

  
8.52 510sq.m of children’s play provision is proposed within the linear landscaped amenity area 

which meets the GLA’s standards. 
  
8.53 As detailed above, the application propose a total of 1633sq.m communal and play space 

areas with ground floor level providing public access, linking Millharbour and Millwall Dock. 
On balance, it is considered that the proposal satisfies the requirements of the Interim 
Planning Guidance, UDP and the London Plan. 

  
 Design 
  
 Introduction 

Page 44



  
8.54 PPS1 promotes high quality and inclusive design, creating well-mixed and integrated 

developments, avoiding segregation, with well planned public spaces. The PPS recognises 
that good design ensures attractive, useable, durable and adaptable places and is a key 
element in achieving sustainable development.  

  
8.55 Policy 7.1 of the London Plan ‘Building London’s Neighbourhoods and Communities’ sets 

out over-arching design principles for London. Policy 7.6 seeks to ensure that new 
buildings are of the highest architectural quality.  These principles are also reflected in 
policies DEV1 and DEV2 of the UDP and the IPG.  

  
8.56 Policy 7.11 sets out the principles associated with the Mayor of London’s View 

Management Framework. 
  
8.57 Policy SP10 of the Core Strategy DPD (2010) seeks to promote and implement 

placemaking across the borough to ensure that the locally distinctive character and context 
of each place is acknowledged and enhanced. The policy also seeks to ensure that 
buildings and neighbourhoods promote good design principles to create buildings, spaces 
and places that are high-quality, sustainable, accessible, attractive, durable and well-
integrated with their surrounds. The policy lists 8 criteria against which development 
proposals will be assessed in order to ascertain whether they achieve this.  

  
 Analysis 
  
8.58 The application site is a rectangular and linear in shape, with an area of approximately 0.43 

hectares. The surrounding area is undergoing transformation with residential-led mixed use 
development. The surrounding area includes a mix of land-uses and built form, 
predominately high density residential developments along Millharbour.  

  
 Scale, massing and layout 
  
8.59 The MQMP designates application site area as suitable for residential led development and 

heights between 11 to 15 storeys (see figure 2).  The MQMP further restricts building 
heights by defining a stepping down of scale from the north to the south. 

  

8.60 Figure 2 Building height concept in MQMP 

Page 45



 
  
8.61 The neighbouring site to the north, at No 41-43 is a residential building of 15 storeys and to 

the south (No. 47) is an existing 8 storey commercial building with an approved Outline 
Planning Consent for a residential- led mixed use development for 10 storeys. 

  
8.62 Whilst there have been some concerns from the neighbouring residential occupiers in 

relation to the height of the building, it is considered that the proposed 8-14 storey 
residential development is acceptable in this location and meets the height criteria of 
stepping down of scale from north to south as defined in MQMP. 

  
8.63 The application site is linear in shape and the proposed building layout corresponds well 

with the site constraints and nearby buildings along Millhabour. The consented schemes 
along the eastern side of Millhabour all have similar layout and form as the proposed 
building, and it is considered that the proposal reflects the changing nature of the 
streetscene.  

  
 Figure 3 Scale and Massing  

 

Page 46



 
Note: No 47 massing and scale shown as the consented scheme 

  
 Design and Appearance 
8.64 The proposals are considered to be well designed and of a good quality. 
  
8.65 The proposed building has been broken down into three elements to reduce the bulk and 

massing. Two taller blocks A and D are located at the either ends of the building 
addressing the street and the dock area and the central area is lower in building height to 
ensure sunlight can be penetrated into the neighbouring block and to the linear amenity 
space on the ground floor level. 

  
8.66 The proposal creates visual interest through the use of colours to define the three elements 

of the building. Each elevation is successfully articulated and executed through stepping 
the building and differentiating openings which further adds to the visual interest of the 
building.  

  
8.67 Securing high quality materials is imperative to the success of this proposal, hence if 

planning permission is approved, a condition securing the submission of full details 
including samples of conditions is necessary.  

  
 Strategic Views 
8.68 The site falls within the wider setting of the Maritime Greenwich World Heritage Site. 

London Panorama View 5: Greenwich Park, as identified within the London Mayor’s 
London View Management Framework (July 2010). The view is protected to ensure that 
new development does not negatively impact on the outstanding universal values of the 
Maritime Greenwich World Heritage Site.  
 

8.69 The GLA have commented that the assessment from View 5A.2 and 6A.1 is satisfactory, 
that the proposal would not impact on these views. However, further verifiable image from 
View 5A.1 was required following GLA’s advice within their Stage 1 report. The applicant 
have now submitted further verifiable image and it is considered that the background of the 
view is not significantly altered and the proposal will form part of the cluster of buildings on 

Page 47



Millharbour as visible from View 5A.1.  Therefore, the proposal accords with policy 7.12 of 
the London Plan and the Mayor’s View Management Framework and 

  
 Design Conclusions 
  
8.70 In terms of height and massing, the proposed development is considered acceptable given 

the surrounding context. The proposal has been designed in a manner which ensures 
relationship with its surrounding buildings is acceptable. The proposal is therefore 
supported by officers in design terms. 

  
 Amenity 
  
 Daylight and Sunlight 
  
8.71 Policy DEV2 of the UDP seeks to ensure that adjoining buildings are not adversely affected 

by a material deterioration of their daylighting and sunlighting conditions. Supporting 
paragraph 4.8 states that policy DEV2 is concerned with the impact of development on the 
amenity of residents and the environment. 

  
8.72 Policy DEV1 of the IPG states that development is required to protect, and where possible 

improve, the amenity of surrounding existing and future residents and building occupants, 
as well as the amenity of the surrounding public realm. The policy includes the requirement 
that development should not result in a material deterioration of the sunlighting and 
daylighting conditions of surrounding habitable rooms. This is supported by policy SP10 of 
the Core Strategy. 

  
8.73 The submitted Sunlight and Daylight Assessment has identified that several residential 

developments are within range of the proposed development, so as to be considered 
‘sensitive receptors’, which contain habitable rooms*.  
 
The following neighbouring residential properties were tested: 
 

• 41 Millharbour 

• 47 Millharbour 

• Lanterns Court 

• 126 Mellish Street 

• 159 Mellish Street 

• 157 Mellish Street 
 

* The UDP (1998) advises that habitable rooms include living rooms, bedrooms and 
kitchens (only where the kitchen exceeds 13sq.m.). 

  
8.74 Daylight is normally calculated by three methods - the vertical sky component (VSC), 

Daylight Distribution (NSL) and the average daylight factor (ADF). BRE guidance requires 
an assessment of the amount of visible sky which is achieved by calculating the VSC at the 
centre of the window. The VSC should exceed 27%, or not exhibit a reduction of 20% on 
the former value, to ensure sufficient light is still reaching windows. In the event that these 
figures are not achieved, consideration should be given to other factors including the NSL 
and ADF. The NSL calculation takes into account the distribution of daylight within the 
room, and again, figures should not exhibit a reduction beyond 20% of the former value. 
The ADF calculation takes account of the size and reflectance of a rooms surfaces, the 
size and transmittance of its window(s) and the level of VSC received by the window(s). 
This is typically used to assess the quality of accommodation of new residential units, as 
opposed to neighbouring units. 

  
8.75 British Standard 8206 recommends ADF values for residential accommodation as: 

Page 48



• 2% for kitchens; 

• 1.5% for living rooms; and 

• 1% for bedrooms. 
  
8.76 Daylight Results: Impacts on Neighbouring Properties 
  
 The properties on Mellish Street will be fully BRE compliant as a result of the development 

and therefore require no further detailed consideration. 
  
 Of the total 760 windows tested, 475 windows indicate compliance the BRE guidelines for 

VSC, representing 63%. Additional hypothetical windows were also tested for the 
consented scheme with outline planning permission, but not yet built at No 47. The 
assessment had to assume the location of windows as the detail design is yet to be 
decided for the outline approved scheme. It was found that of the 161 windows tested, 152 
would not meet the BRE guidelines for VSC.  

  
8.77 The assessment indicates that where a VSC falls between 15% and 27%, larger windows 

and changes to room layout at details design stage could allow adequate daylight into the 
room. Nonetheless, the neighbouring sites benefit from a situation where the baseline 
conditions of very little obstruction due to the two storey nature of the existing building. 

  
8.78 Whilst the proposal will result in reduced level of daylight (VSC) as a result of the 

development, given the urban context of the area, on balance officers consider that the 
impacts in terms of loss of daylight and sunlight do not outweigh the benefits of the overall 
scheme will deliver as a whole – being development on an under utilised site for housing. 

  
 Sunlight Assessment  
  
8.79 Sunlight is assessed through the calculation of the annual probable sunlight hours (APSH). 

This method of assessment considers the amount of sun available in the summer and 
winter, for windows within 90 degrees of due south. 

  

 Sunlight Results: Impacts on Neighbouring Properties 
  
8.80 A total of 596 windows which overlook the site were tested and 420 indicate compliance. 

For the windows on No 47 Millharbour, the windows face due north therefore the windows 
need not testing.  

  
8.81 Whilst there are failures, on balance, and in the context of the whole development and the 

dense urban environment, the overall impact on sunlight is considered acceptable. 
  
 Shadow Analysis  
  

8.82 The BRE report advises that for spaces to appear adequately sunlit throughout the year at 
least half of gardens or amenity areas should receive at least two hours of sunlight on the 
21st of March. If this is not achieved, the result should not be more than 80% of it’s former 
value.  

  

8.83 Only one area has been identified as requiring a technical review which is the area of linear 
communal amenity space and area between the proposed building and No 41-43 
Millharbour. Shadow analysis show that only 3.8% will be in permanent shadow of the 
whole area as combined. The courtyard within No 41-43 will not be in any permanent 
shadow as a result of this development and only small area would be in permanent 
showdown for the linear amenity space. Accordingly, the shadow impacts of the proposal 
are considered acceptable. 

  

Page 49



 Air Quality 
  
8.84 A condition is necessary to require the submission and approval of a further Air Quality 

Management Plan as part of the Construction Management Plan, to detail measures to 
reduce dust escaping from the site. Such matters are also covered by separate 
Environmental Health legislation. 

  
 Noise and Vibration  
  
8.85 The Councils Environmental Health section reviewed the submitted information, and 

advised that the application is acceptable in terms of noise and vibration, provided 
conditions are attached should planning permission to secure a sound insulation which 
demonstrates compliance with Part E of the Building Regulations. 

  
 Sense of Enclosure/Loss of Outlook and Privacy 
  
8.86 Policies SP10 of the Core Strategy, DEV2 of the UDP and DEV1 of the IPG seek to ensure 

that new development protects amenity, preventing the loss of privacy. This impact cannot 
be readily assessed in terms of a percentage or measurable loss of quality of outlook. 
Rather, it is about how an individual feels about a space. It is consequently difficult to 
quantify and is somewhat subjective.  

  
8.87 The separation distance of the proposed building and its neighbouring building at No 45 

Millharbour is 18.2m. Therefore, this is considered acceptable. The separation distance 
from the proposed building to No 49 Millharbour varies from 15m to 18m. Where the 
separation distance falls short of 18m, the building has been suitably designed to minimise 
direct overlooking through translucent walls. In the opinion of officers, the separation 
distances between the proposed development and directly facing neighbouring properties 
is considered acceptable given the urban context of the surrounding area. 

  
 Micro-Climate 
  
8.88 Planning guidance contained within the London Plan 2011 places great importance on the 

creation and maintenance of a high quality environment for London. Policy 7.7 (Location 
and Design of Tall and Large Buildings) of the London Plan, requires that “tall buildings 
should not affect their surroundings adversely in terms of microclimate, wind turbulence..’ 
Wind microclimate is therefore an important factor in achieving the desired planning policy 
objective.  Policy DEV1 (Amenity) of the IPG also identifies microclimate as an important 
issue stating that: 
 

“Development is required to protect, and where possible seek to improve, the 
amenity of surrounding and existing and future residents and building occupants as 
well as the amenity of the surrounding public realm.  To ensure the protection of 
amenity, development should: …not adversely affect the surrounding 
microclimate.” 

  
8.89 The application is accompanied by a Wind Microclimate Desk Study and it assesses the 

likely impact of the proposed development on the wind climate, by placing an accurate 
model of the proposed building in a wind tunnel. The assessment has focused on the 
suitability of the site for desired pedestrian use (i.e. leisure walking at worst, with standing 
conditions at entrances and in retail areas, and sitting/standing conditions in public realm 
areas during summer) and the impact relative to that use.  

  
8.90 The pedestrian level wind microclimate at the site was quantified and classified in 

accordance with the widely accepted Lawson Comfort Criteria.  
  

Page 50



8.91 Overall, the residual effect of the proposed development, with required mitigation 
measures in place, is expected to be minor adverse to moderate beneficial. The mitigation 
measures include soft landscaping and planting at street level around the proposed area of 
the linear landscaped area and on the 7th floor communal terrace area.  

  
8.92 It is therefore considered that the proposed development would be acceptable in terms of 

the impact upon microclimate conditions surrounding the development and would not 
significantly impact on the pedestrian amenity on the site. 

  
 Transport 
  
8.93 In consideration of national policy, PPG13 ‘Transport’ seeks to integrate planning and 

transport from the national to local level. Its objectives include: promoting more sustainable 
transport choices; promoting accessibility using public transport, walking and cycling; and 
reducing the need for travel, especially by car. Both PPS1 ‘Delivering Sustainable 
Development’ and PPS3 ‘Housing’ seek to create sustainable developments. 

  
8.94 London Plan Policy 6.3 seeks to ensure that new development does not adversely affect 

safety on the transport network. Policies 6.8, 6.9 and 6.10 seek to ensure that new 
developments make appropriate provision for cycles and the pedestrian environment. 
Policies 6.12 and 6.13 seek to ensure that new developments provide an appropriate level 
of car parking, whilst ensuring new developments result in a net benefit on road network 
capacity. 

  
8.95 In respect of local policy, UDP saved policy T16 states that the consideration of planning 

applications will take into account the requirements of the proposed use and any impact 
posed. Policy T18 indicates that priority will be given to pedestrians in the management of 
roads and the design and layout of footways. Improvements to the pedestrian environment 
will be introduced and supported in accordance with Policy T19, including the retention and 
improvement of existing routes and where necessary, their replacement in new 
management schemes in accordance with Policy T21. 

  
8.96 Having regard to the IPG, policy DEV17 states that all developments, except minor 

schemes, should be supported by a transport assessment. This should identify potential 
impacts, detail the schemes features, justify parking provision and identify measures to 
promote sustainable transport options. DEV18 requires a travel plan for all major 
development. DEV19 sets maximum parking levels. Policies SP08 and SP09 of the Core 
Strategy DPD (2010) seek to deliver an accessible, efficient and sustainable transport 
network.  

  
8.97 The PTAL rating for the site is moderate (level 2), however the site is within a walking 

distance to South Quay and Crossharbour DLR Stations. 
  
8.98 The proposal includes a total of 42 residential car parking spaces, 16 of which will be for 

disabled parking use. The applicant has also allocated 8 spaces for Social Rented housing. 
Eight parking spaces have been provided with electric charging points, with a further eight 
designed for passive provision. 15 motorcycle parking spaces and a maximum 226 cycle 
parking spaces proposed for residents, employees and visitors.  

  
 Vehicular Parking 
  
8.99 Whilst the Council’s Highways section would prefer to see a lower provision, the proposed 

42 spaces comply with policy in numerical terms, and TfL have confirmed they also accept 
the proposed provision. The proposed 42 car parking spaces are considered acceptable on 
balance. 

  

Page 51



8.100 It is therefore considered that the vehicular parking provisions would be in accordance with 
policies 6.9 and 6.13 of the London Plan.  A S106 legal agreement should be entered into 
in order that the Traffic Management Order can be amended to exempt occupiers of this 
site from obtaining parking permits.  This will ensure no overflow parking on the public 
highway. 

  
 Cycle Parking 
  
8.101 The application proposes a scheme whereby a maximum of 266 secure cycle parking 

spaces can be provided within the basement level and at ground floor level. The cycle 
parking areas are separated into 10 secure storage areas. In addition, a total of 26 cycle 
parking spaces for visitors and employees are proposed on the street level on Millharbour 
street front and on Millharbour Dock. This represents a provision in excess of 1 space per 
residential unit, and is therefore compliant with Planning Standard 3: Parking and policy 
DEV16 of the IPG. Commercial cycle spaces are proposed at ground level.  

  
 Servicing and Refuse Collection 
  
 Servicing 
8.102 All servicing for the commercial units are proposed to take place on site in the basement 

car park which can accommodate transit type of vehicles. The proposal also includes a 
service lift which can easily transport deliveries and goods to the ground floor commercial 
units. The Council’s Highways section is satisfied with this arrangement. 

  
8.103 Residential Refuse 

The scheme proposes the incorporation of a refuse storage space on the southern end of 
the building.  The location is suitable as it is accessible to all the residents via a rear 
entrance door to each core. The storage area can accommodate approximately 22 euro 
bins, which should be 50% recycling and 50% general waste provision. An appropriately 
worded condition will be proposed to ensure that suitable provision of recycling and waste 
can be accommodated on site. 

  
8.104 Commercial Refuse 

The waste storage for commercial is separated and also location to the southern end of the 
building. Each commercial unit benefits from easy accessible through the rear doors. 
Recycling and general waste bins would be provided and this will also be secured by 
condition to ensure it can be delivered.  

  
 Delivery service plan and construction logistics plan 
  
8.105 TfL have requested the submission of a delivery service plan and a construction logistics 

plan. Should permission be granted, conditions which secure the submission of a 
Construction Management Plan and a Delivery and Service Plan would satisfy this request. 

  
 Travel Plan 
  
8.106 The applicant have submitted a Travel Plan and TfL have commented that the Plan 

contains clear modal split targets as well as a monitoring and funding framework. Should 
permission be granted, this travel plan will be secured by way of the s106 agreement. 

  
 Energy Efficiency and Sustainability 
  
8.107 At a national level, PPS22 and PPS1 encourage developments to incorporate renewable 

energy and to promote energy efficiency.   
  
8.108 The London Plan sets out the Mayor’s energy hierarchy which is to: 

Page 52



• Use Less Energy (Be Lean); 
• Supply Energy Efficiently (Be Clean); and 
• Use Renewable Energy (Be Green). 

  
8.109 The London Plan 2011 includes the target to achieve a minimum 25% reduction in CO2 

emissions above the Building Regulations 2010 through the cumulative steps of the Energy 
Hierarchy (Policy 5.2).  

  
8.110 Saved Policy DEV2 of the UDP (1998), DEV 6 of the IPG (2007) and SP02 of the Core 

Strategy (2010) seek to incorporate the principle of sustainable development, including use 
of energy efficient design and materials, and promoting renewable technologies. The 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy SP11 requires all new developments to provide 
a 20% reduction of carbon dioxide emissions through on-site renewable energy generation. 

  
8.111 The submitted energy strategy demonstrates that the proposal will have a 44% 

improvement over 2006 building regulations. This is equivalent to 25% over the current 
baseline, which is 2010 building regulation. This is achieved through the connection to the 
Barkantine heat district network and passive energy measures. The proposal satisfies 
policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2011 and it is proposed that the connection to the district 
heating network to be secured through S106, to ensure that the development delivers its 
commitment to ‘be lean’ and ‘be clean’.  

  
8.112 Photovoltaic cells are proposed to provide a source of on site renewable energy (Be 

Green). The technologies employed would result in a 3% carbon savings over the baseline. 
The PV’s are proposed to be installed on the roofs of Block A and Block D with brown 
roofs.  The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed CO2 emission reduction through 
PV’s (3%) is the maximum that can be achieved from renewable energy technologies for 
the site. Whilst the proposed development is not meeting Core Strategy Policy SP11, the 
Council’s Sustainable Development Team support the application as the development is in 
compliance with the London Plan (Policies 5.2 and 5.11). 

  
8.113 It is recommended that the strategy is secured by Condition and delivered in accordance 

with the submitted Energy Statement dated April 2011 and its addendum. 
  
8.114 In terms of sustainability, London Borough of Tower Hamlets requires all new residential 

development to achieve a Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 rating and all commercial 
development to achieve a BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating. This is to ensure the highest levels 
of sustainable design and construction in accordance with Policy 5.3 of the London Plan 
2011 dated and Policy DEV 5 of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Interim Planning 
Guidance which seek the highest standards of sustainable design and construction 
principles to be integrated into all future developments. 

  
8.115 The submitted Energy Statement sets out the commitment to achieving a Code for 

Sustainable Homes Level 4 rating and targets a BREEAM Excellent rating. It is 
recommended that the achievement of these ratings is secured through an appropriately 
worded Condition.  

  
 Other Planning Issues 
  
 Flooding 
8.116 The application site lies within Flood Zone 4 designed by Planning Policy Statement 25 as 

having a high probability of flooding. The applicant has submitted Flood Management Plan 
and Flood Risk Assessment. The Flood Risk Assessment demonstrates that the proposed 
development of the site is appropriate from the perspectives of flood risk and drainage. 
Environment Agency has reviewed the Flood Risk Assessment and the Management Plan 
and are satisfied with the submitted information subject to various planning conditions 

Page 53



being attached to planning permission.   
  
 Biodiversity 
  
8.117 There are no significant biodiversity issues on the site and therefore, no adverse impacts 

on biodiversity. The proposals include brown roofs at a higher level which cannot be 
accessed by residents of the development which is considered acceptable by the Council’s 
Biodiversity officer. It is recommended that the provision of brown style roof should be 
secured through condition together with nest boxes and roosting sites for bats to 
encourage biodiversity.  

  
 Demolition & Construction 
  
8.118 Some concerns have been raised in relation to the nuisance from construction works. The 

typical hours of work, which would be secured by condition would be 08:00 – 18:00 
weekdays; 08:00 – 13:00 Saturdays; and no working on Sundays or bank holidays. This is 
also covered by Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999 and therefore the hours are 
regulated. 

  
8.119 In addition, the applicants agree to the provision of an Environmental Management Plan 

(EMP) to be secured by condition. This plan would cover various operational aspects of the 
development phase, including air quality, noise, dust and vibration, as well as monitoring of 
impacts. The EMP would be reviewed by the Environmental Health section, and allow the 
Council to work with the developer to ensure that impacts associated with the build are 
closely monitored. 

  
 Section 106 Agreement 
  
8.120 As set out in Circular 05/2005, planning obligations should only be sought where they meet 

the 5 key tests. The obligations should be: 
 

(i) Relevant to planning; 
(ii) Necessary to make the proposed development acceptable in planning terms; 
(iii) Directly related to the proposed development; 
(iv) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the proposed development; 

and 
(v) Reasonable in all other respects. 

  
8.121 More recently, regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 

brings into law policy tests for planning obligations which can only constitute a reason for 
granting planning permission where they are:  
 

(a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) Directly related to the development; and  
(c) Are fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 

  
8.122 Policies 8.2 of the London Plan (2011), Saved policy DEV4 of the UDP (1998), policy IMP1 

of the IPG (2007) and policy SP13 in the Core Strategy (2010) seek to negotiate planning 
obligations through their deliverance in kind or through financial contributions. 

  
8.123 The Council has recently published a draft Supplementary Planning Document on Planning 

Obligations in August 2011.  This document which is currently out on public consultation; 
provides guidance on the policy concerning planning obligations set out in policy SP13 of 
the adopted Core Strategy. Within the document, the standard obligations area set out 
under the following headings: 
 

Page 54



Key priorities are: 
 

• Affordable Housing 

• Employment, skills, training and enterprise 

• Community facilities 

• Education 
 
The Millennium Quarter Master Plan Planning Contributions Framework establishes a 
requirement for essential infrastructure works to ensure that the impacts of the 
development are mitigated within the area. 
 
In light of these, LBTH Officers have identified the following contributions to mitigate 
against the impacts of the proposed development, which the applicant has agreed. As 
such, it is recommended that a S106 legal agreement secure the following Heads of 
Terms: 

  
 Affordable Housing 
  
2.124 Delivery of 37% affordable housing (a total of 44 units of which 32 are at target rent and 12 

intermediate) on the Site. 
  
 MQMP infrastructure 
  
8.125 A financial contribution of £202,620 (index linked from April 2002 at a rate of £1,535 per 

unit) for Millennium Quarter infrastructure and arrangements, including the upgrade of 
transport infrastructure, public realm and open spaces, the provision of training and 
employment and the securing community facilities to achieve the objectives of the 
Millennium Quarter Master Plan.   

  
 Education 
  
8.126 Increased residential development impacts on the demand for school places within the 

borough. Where there is a child yield output from a development, the Council would seek 
contributions towards additional primary and secondary school places across the borough. 
Financial contributions towards Education would be pooled in line with Circular 06/2005. 
This would allow expenditure on Education to be planned on a Borough wide basis to meet 
the Education need for its residents. Based on the Council’s Draft Planning Obligations 
SPD, the proposal would result in the need for 19 additional primary places at £14,830 per 
place, and 9 additional secondary school places at £22,347 per place. Accordingly, the 
total education financial contribution sought is £482,893. 

  
 Health 
  
8.127 The Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust have requested a contribution of £172,260 towards 

the development of health and wellbeing centres.  
  
8.128 Due to the Borough wide impact, financial contributions towards Health Facilities would be 

pooled in line with Circular 05/2005. This would allow expenditure on health to be planned 
on a Borough wide basis to meet the need for its residents. 

  
 Employment and Training  
  
8.129 In terms of non-financial obligations, the applicant has also been asked to use reasonable 

endeavours to ensure: 
 

• 20% Local procurement at construction phase  

Page 55



 
This requirement would be captured in the S106 requiring the developer to include a ‘local 
procurement clause’ for their subcontracting supply chains.  The developer would provide 
LBTH with a list detailing a package of works/trades, so that LBTH can match these 
requirements with appropriate suppliers within the Borough.    
 
The Skillsmatch Service would also assist in local procurement through advertising 
upcoming contracts in the East London Business Place and facilitating an integrated 
consultation event with a number of developers to enable them to meet with prospective 
local suppliers.   

  
8.130 • 20% Local labour in construction phase 

 
This requirement would also be captured in the S106 where by Tower Hamlets would 
provide a full job brokerage service. The Skillsmatch team would have access to a 
database of entry-level operatives, experienced trades people and site managers and the 
team would develop a complete skills solution based on the developer’s labour 
requirements.  
 
This can also include pre-employment training for local jobseekers (e.g. Construction Skills 
Certification Scheme (CSCS) cards, Traffic Marshall certificates, Plant training tickets and 
other accreditations).  

  
 Total 
  
8.131 A total financial contribution (including a monitoring fee of £17,155) of £874,928 is 

therefore sought.  
  
9 Conclusions 
  
9.1 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account. Planning 

permission should be approved for the reasons set out in the SUMMARY OF MATERIAL 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS and the details of the decision are set out in the 
RECOMMENDATION at the beginning of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	SDC _081211_Draft Minutes FINAL

	5 PROCEDURE FOR HEARING OBJECTIONS
	6 DEFERRED ITEMS
	7 PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION
	7.1 45 Millhabour, London (PA/11/00798)

